
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 21 April 2022, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Tracy Coward (Vice-Chairman) 

Pete Endsor 

Kevin Holmes 

Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Monday, 11 April 2022 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Adam Moffatt 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 12 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 8 December 2021 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  RISK MANAGEMENT - OPERATIONAL RISKS  13 - 22 

 To consider the report Risk Management – Operational Risks.  

6  REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT PROCESS  

23 - 48 

 To consider the report Review of Performance Management Framework and 
Risk Management Process. 

 

7  THE EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022  

49 - 70 

 To consider the Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council year ended 31 
March 2022. 

 

8  AUDIT COMMITTEE PROGRESS REPORT  71 - 92 

 To consider the Audit Committee Progress Report.  

9  HOUSING BENEFIT (SUBSIDY) ASSURANCE PROCESS REPORT  93 - 98 

 To consider the Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process Report.  

10  CHAIR OF AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT  99 - 110 

 To consider the Chair of the Audit Committee’s Annual Report.  



11  REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE  111 - 128 

 To consider the report Review of Effectiveness of Audit Committee.  

12  SLDC INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  129 - 180 

 To consider the report SLDC Internal Audit Progress Report.   

13  SLDC INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN  181 - 194 

 To consider the report SLDC Internal Audit Annual Plan.  

14  REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT  195 - 210 

 To consider the report Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit.  

15  AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMMES  211 - 218 

 To consider the Audit Committee Work Programmes for 20-22 and 22-23.  

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



13 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Lowther 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Wednesday, 8 December 2021, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Tracy Coward (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Kevin Holmes 

 
Kevin Lancaster 

 
  

 
Officers 

 
Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

John Davies Case Management Officer 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Adam Moffatt Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Simon Rowley Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

 
Also in attendance were Hebe Dyson (External Audit), Peter Harrison (Internal Audit 
Manager) and Gareth Kelly (External Audit Manager). 
 

AUD/21 MINUTES  
 
Members thanked Officers for the response to the query raised at the previous meeting by 
the Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 (AUD16), regarding the review of Contract 
Management and two important action points highlighted in the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 23 September 2021. 
 

AUD/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were raised. 
 

AUD/23 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
There were no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

AUD/24 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME (DECEMBER 2021)  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) introduced the 2021/22 Work 
Programme. Five items contained within the Programme had been delayed until the April 
2022 meeting: External Auditor Update; Review effectiveness of Internal Audit; Review of 
Whistleblowing Policy; Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness and Customer Connect 
Business Case & Updates. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



14 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

Members raised a query relating to the impact of Shadow Authority elections in May 2022 
and in general the progression of Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) on the Audit 
Committee’s role. The Chief Executive of the Council informed Members that as part of 
ongoing work streams related to LGR these questions were being discussed and it was 
felt that there would be no significant impact on the Audit Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress against the Audit Committee’s 2021/22 Work 
Programme be noted. 
 

AUD/25 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22  
 
Note – as requested at the previous meeting, Members received an additional 
Appendix (3a) containing a response and explanation to a question raised at the 
meeting held on 23 September 2021 (AUD/16). 

Note – following a request from the Chairman, Members agreed to consider Agenda 
Item No. 7 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 following the conclusion of 
Agenda Item No. 5 Audit Committee 2021/22 Work Programme (December 2021). 
 
Peter Harrison, Internal Audit, introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22. The 
report provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan to date. 
 
Following the Internal Audit Plan’s approval in April 2021, four assurance reviews had 
been finalised, relating to Information Governance, Treasury Management, Customer 
Connect – My Account and ICT Cyber Maturity. In addition, a draft report had been issued 
on Covid-19 Grant Schemes with fieldwork underway on a further review of Budgetary 
Control. Mr Harrison informed Members that no changes had been proposed to the 
Annual Plan at this time. 
 
The Review of Information Governance had resulted in a reasonable assurance 
assessment. Two important action points had been identified as well as 6 routine action 
points. In response to a query linked to the lack of training on GDPR and meetings of the 
Information Governance Group (IGG) the Chief Executive of the Council informed 
Members that the capacity to respond had been limited by the ongoing Covid-19 
pandemic, business as usual activities, the Customer Connect Programme as well as 
LGR which had been ongoing since Spring 2020. He added that he agreed with the 
recommendations and assured Members that it was a priority to catch up and keep on 
track with training and meetings of the IGG. 
 
Further discussion raised the importance of cyber security, Peter Harrison (Internal Audit) 
emphasised this point by stating that all sectors needed to take cyber security seriously. 
The Chief Executive of the Council agreed, adding that a neighbouring Council had been 
the victim of a cyber-attack and assured Members that this was taken seriously and 
reviewed on a regular basis. The Chairman of the Audit Committee suggested quarterly 
reviews could be necessary to ensure the Council’s cyber security was sufficiently 
reviewed. 
 
The Review of Treasury Management had resulted in a reasonable assurance 
assessment. One important action point had been identified regarding a contract for 
treasury management advice, it was recommended that the contract, which ended on 31 
March 2021 be formally extended to cover the ongoing service provision. The review 
noted that the Council continued to receive services from Link as detailed within the 
contract. Members thanked officers for their hard work to receive a positive outcome on 
this review.  
 

Page 6



15 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

The Review of Customer Connect – ‘My Account’ had resulted in a reasonable assurance 
assessment. Three important action points had been identified. Management responses 
had just been received and it was agreed that this report would come back to the next 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
The Cyber Security Maturity Assessment noted that the Council had high dependency on 
information technology and recognised that cyber-crime was a significant risk. The 
maturity assessment was summarised in a radar diagram in the report and highlighted 
significant gaps of 2 or more maturity steps which existed between the aspirational level 
and the assessed level of maturity for the following areas: Cyber Governance 
Arrangements; Risk Management Regime; Network Security; User Education & 
Awareness; Removable Media Controls; Secure Configuration; Incident Management 
Monitoring and Home & Mobile Working. It was noted that the Assessment still needed to 
be send for the input of the Council’s Head of Shared IT Service and so would be brought 
back to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
Peter Harrison (Internal Audit) highlighted the follow up review which detailed a number of 
implemented and outstanding recommendations. The Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources added that additional focus was required to complete the outstanding 
recommendations of Internal Audit and proposed discussions with Internal Audit to look at 
the current positon and how to move forwards with the completion of the 
recommendations and in light of Local Government Reorganisation and to come back to 
the April 2022 Audit Committee meeting. 
 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 

(1) The progress achieved in 2021/22 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report; 
 

(2) The audit reports, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report; and 
 

(3) The status of outstanding recommendations contained within the follow up report, 
as set out in Appendix 3 to the report. 

 

AUD/26 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21  
 
Note – Copies of the report, which had been marked “to follow” on the Agenda, had 
been circulated to Members on Thursday, 2 December 2021. 
 
The External Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21, which summarised the key findings arising 
from work carried out by External Audit at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2021, 
was presented by Gareth Kelly, External Audit. 
 
The key messages were that External Audit had provided an unqualified opinion on the 
Council’s financial statements on 23 September 2021. External Audit concluded that there 
had been no significant weaknesses in arrangements identified for financial sustainability, 
governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
during the year ended 31 March 2021. External Audit had certified that it had completed 
the audit of the accounts of South Lakeland District Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice 23 September 2021. 
 
Members raised a query relating to the terms ‘discretionary’ and ‘non-discretionary’. The 
Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that she had considered 

Page 7



16 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

this matter previously and highlighted some examples of difficulties in accurately defining 
the Council’s discretionary and non-discretionary functions. The Finance Lead Specialist 
(Section 151 Officer) suggested that the terms ‘controllable’ and ‘non-controllable’ were 
perhaps more appropriate. Gareth Kelly (External Audit) added that upon reflection, the 
terminology could be changed if deemed necessary and that this should link into the 
Council Plan priorities. 
  
A question related to an improvement recommendation on benchmarking costs and 
performance against similar bodies was raised by Members. In response the Chief 
Executive of the Council explained that benchmarking was done internally as an authority 
and gave the example of housing and planning targets. He added that benchmarking 
tended to swing in and out of fashion over time. 
 
Following up the previous question, Members raised a query regarding if the Council 
benchmarked its progress with the zero carbon targets against other Councils with similar 
goals. The Chief Executive of the Council responded, informing Members that South 
Lakeland District Council had been ahead of many other authorities regarding its activity 
in addressing the climate emergency and biodiversity loss. He added that the Council 
remained committed to the 2030 and 2037 targets and that robust systems had been put 
in place to achieve those ambitious targets. Gareth Kelly (External Audit) added that in 
terms of benchmarking, a number of platforms had emerged to assist local authorities in 
driving even better performance. 
 
Gareth Kelly (External Audit) referred to an incomplete review of the Council’s response to 
Covid-19 and informed Members that the Council had processed 101% more grants 
compared to district comparators. The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 
added that the Internal Audit review had been completed, but not in time to be on the 
agenda for this meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the External Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21 be 
noted. 
 

AUD/27 2021/22 ACCOUNTING POLICES  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) presented a report outlining proposed 
accounting policies to be adopted for the 2021/22 financial year and to be used in the 
preparation of the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ending 31 March 2022. 
These had been prepared in line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accounting’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2021/22 
(the Code). Adopting the proposed policies would support timely production of a high 
quality set of annual accounts. 
 
The 2021/22 CIPFA Code of practice was not expected to have any changes for 
accounting policies compared to 2020/21. The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 
Officer) informed Members that CIPFA had delayed the introduction of IFRS 16 leases 
until 1 April 2022 which meant that the 2022/23 Accounts will be the first accounts that 
would need to be prepared in line with this standard. She added that production of the 
2021/22 Statement of accounts would have to disclose Accounting Standards that had 
been issued but not adopted yet and the likely impact on the accounts which was shown 
in Appendix 2 to the report. 
 
No Members having raised questions when asked by the Chairman, it was  
 

Page 8



17 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That 
 

(1) the accounting policies at Appendix 1 for the 2021/22 financial year be approved to 
be used in the preparation of the Statement of Accounts for the financial year 
ending 31 March 2022; and 
 

(2) the forthcoming changes to lease accounting as detailed in Appendix 2 be noted. 
 

AUD/28 REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) presented the Review of Financial 
Procedure Rules Report which identified four areas which required clarification or 
updating which were as follows:-  
 

 Useable Earmarked Reserves – required clarification that the transfer limit was per 
year not per transfer; 

 External Arrangements (partnerships, External Funding Arrangements and Work 
for Third Parties) – changes were still being developed; 

 Investments, Borrowings Leasing and Trust Funds – updated to reflect new 
leasing requirements; and  

 Insurances – updated to reflect rules for setting claims. 
 
No Member having raised any questions when asked by the Chairman, it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommended amendments to the Finance Procedure Rules 
contained within the report be referred to Council for approval. 
 

AUD/29 ANNUAL REVIEW OF ANTI-FRAUD POLICY & ACTIVITY  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that Appendix 7 to 
the report, which had been marked to follow on the agenda would be circulated to 
Members following the meeting as it had not been ready to circulate before the meeting. 
She informed Members that this report was normally an annual report, but due to the high 
volume of Covid-19 grants that had been paid out, the review and report had been 
delayed. 
 
The report set out the results of the Review of Anti-Fraud Policy and Activity, it was felt 
that the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy, which formed part of the Council’s 
Policy Framework was still suitable, with minor amendments having been made following 
the review in September 2019. In addition, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption and a Counter-Fraud Assessment Tool had been included at 
Appendix 4 to the report. 
 
The report highlighted that local authorities had made significant progress in tackling fraud 
by acknowledging and understanding the risks faced, collaborating and using technology. 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) highlighted that the Council had 
controls in place in order to prevent and identify tax evasion but that it would be good 
practice to have a formal policy and procedures to cover this area. A draft Tax Evasion 
Policy Procedures and Reporting Arrangement had been prepared for consideration by 
Audit Committee. She added that this policy, if agreed, would be referred to Council for 
approval. 
 

Page 9



18 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

No Member having raised any questions when asked by the Chair, it was 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 

(1) the review of the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy (Appendix 1) and the 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy (Appendix 3) be noted;  
 

(2) the Counter Fraud Strategy 2021-2024 and the -Tax Evasion Policy Procedures 
and Reporting Arrangements be recommended to Council for approval;  

 
(3) the review against the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption Counter-Fraud Assessment Tool and Fighting Fraud and Corruption 
Locally 2020 Checklist be noted; and 

 

(4) the anti-fraud activity be noted. 
 

AUD/30 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Case Management Officer (Support Services) presented the latest Strategic Risk 
Register. The Register contained all those risks above the line of risk tolerance. The Case 
Management Officer (Support Services) informed Members that following a review of the 
Strategic Risks for Quarter 4 2019/20 it was found that 65% of risks were above appetite 
which was due to the pressure caused by Covid-19. However the review for Quarter 2 
2021/22 had shown significant improvement with the number of risks above appetite being 
reduced to 19%. He added that risks above appetite had been reviews at least on a 
quarterly basis. 
 
Members raised a query regarding the impact of Storm Arwen and any new risks as a 
result of the storm. The Case Management Officer (Support Services) responded by 
informing Members that no new risks had been identified. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to Officers for their work on Storm Arwen and felt that 
the reduction in the number of risks above appetite, highlighted a real focus and 
understanding of risks and how to mitigate them. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted. 
 

AUD/31 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  
 
The updated Audit Committee Risk Register was presented by the Finance Lead 
Specialist (Section 151 Officer). The Risk Register had last been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee in April 2021.  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that this report had 
been delayed from the September 2021 meeting. She highlighted three live risks which 
were challenges due to inexperience, inability to carry out statutory requirements and 
delays in reports coming through to committee, all three of the risks had been positioned 
below the line of appetite.  
 
The report set out a new proposed risk linked to the impact of Local Government 
Reorganisation and the potential redirection of resources which reflected delays to the 
submission of reports to this Committee. 
 

Page 10



19 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

Members raised a query regarding the impact of Local Government Reorganisation on the 
functioning of the Audit Committee running in parallel to any potential Shadow Authority 
meetings. Gareth Kelly (External Audit) explained that it was necessary to maintain 
functioning up to vesting day as there would still be auditing taking place. He added that 
following the start of the new authority, there would still be activity to audit and that 
planning was key to ensure that the various elements had been factored in. 
 
RESOLVED – That the updated Audit Committee Risk Register be noted. 
 

AUD/32 REVIEW OF LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE AND GOVERNANCE UPDATE  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist presented an update on the Review of Local Code of 
Governance and Governance Update. The report highlighted that it was good practice to 
review arrangements on a quarterly basis with overarching requirements having been set 
out for governance. The last review in April 2021 had updated the Local Code to include 
an emphasis on the inclusion of ethics in consideration of the organisation’s values and 
added a new requirement C14 to ensure the Council fully complies with the requirements 
of the CIPFA Financial Management Code. No further amendments had been proposed to 
the Local Code as a result of the current review. 
 
An action plan to address areas for improvements in the Council’s governance 
arrangements was presented as part of the preparation of the 2020/21 Annual 
Governance Statement, which had been presented to Audit Committee in September 
2021. The Finance Lead Specialist informed Members that Appendix 6 gave an update on 
the progress against the various actions. The 2020/21 identified that the Council’s 
partnership governance arrangements were now out of date, not effective and were not 
being followed. Draft Partnership Guidance and checklists were proposed to address 
these issues and were attached at Appendix 3. 
 
No Member having raised concern when asked by the Chairman, it was 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 

(1) The review of the Local Code of Governance and associated documents be noted; 
and 
 

(2) The proposed Partnership Guidelines at Appendix 3 be approved. 
 

At this stage in the proceedings, the Chairman noticed that there was no regular item for 
“Other Significant Financial Issues”. The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 
provided a verbal financial update to Members. 
 

AUD/33 DECISION TO OPT-IN TO THE NATIONAL SCHEME FOR AUDIT APPOINTMENTS  
 
Note – Following a request from the Chairman, Members agreed that Agenda Item 
No. 9 Decision to Opt-in to the National Scheme for Audit Appointments be taken 
following the conclusion of Agenda Item No. 14 Review of Local Code of 
Governance and Governance Update 
 
Note - The subject of the report concerning recommendations regarding the options 
for appointment of external auditors, representatives of the incumbent external 
auditors (Hebe Hebe Dyson (External Audit), Peter Harrison (Internal Audit 
Manager) and Gareth Kelly (External Audit Manager) left the meeting for Agenda 
Item No. 9 

Page 11



20 
08.12.2021 Audit Committee 
 

 

 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) presented a report regarding a 
proposal to opt-in to the National Scheme for Audit Appointments. The report highlighted 
the current appointment arrangements which applied to 31 March 2023.  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) explained that the new authority would 
need an auditor and it would be up to the new authority to opt-in to a similar scheme. She 
added that in order for the Council to be covered in all eventualities for the coming years, 
it was good practice for South Lakeland District Council to opt-in to the National Scheme 
for Audit Appointments now as there would be no option to join at a later date. In addition 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) had advised all existing Councils to consider 
opting in to this exercise as a contingency against the delay in creating the new unitary 
authorities for Cumbria. 
 
Following a question from Members, the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 
informed Members that Grant Thornton would complete the 2022/2023 accounts and the 
new authority would have auditors to pick up any outstanding issues. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Audit Committee recommend to Council that the Council accepts 
Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option for the 
appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police bodies for five 
financial years from 1 April 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.06 p.m. 

Page 12



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Risk Management - Operational Risks 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Jonathan Brook - Leader of the Council 

Report from: Dan Hudson – Strategy Lead Specialist 

Report Author: John Davies – Case Management Support Services  

Wards:  All Wards 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Reviewing risks supports good performance with all Priorities as set out in the Council Plan: 

Working across boundaries 

Delivering a balanced community 

A fairer South Lakeland 

Addressing the climate emergency 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 Members are aware of the operational risks which are positioned above the line of risk 
appetite. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the operational risks which are positioned above the line of risk 
appetite, and their mitigating controls, as listed in Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Following an internal audit recommendation Case Management reports the 
operational risks that are above tolerance to Audit Committee on an annual basis. 
This ensures that Members are aware of the operational risks and their continuous 
management. 

3.2 Following a review of the Operational Risk Register during Quarter 4 2021/22 it can 
be seen that 11 risks (11% of risks) are currently above Risk Appetite - a significant 
reduction when compared with Q1 2021/22 when 26 risks (23% of risks) were above 
Risk Appetite. This improvement is in line with the reduction in the numbers of 
Strategic Risks above appetite - and demonstrates the Councils continual focus on 
risk review and mitigation at both Strategic and Operational levels. 

3.3 This report asks the Audit Committee to note the operational risks which are 
positioned above the line of appetite, and their mitigating controls, as listed in 
Appendix 1 to this report. 

Page 13

Item No.5



 

 

3.4 The Strategic Risk Register is also reported to Audit Committee every 6 months. The 
Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by Corporate Management Team prior to being 
reported each quarter as part of quarterly performance monitoring and reporting 
arrangements. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Operational Risks 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Case Management facilitates the quarterly review of operational risks with Operational 
Leads. The risks currently positioned above appetite are listed in appendix 1. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 No alternative options recommended – Audit Committee must have sight of operational 
risks for governance and assurance purposes. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no staffing implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no Health, Social, Economic or Environmental implications associated with 
reporting operational risks. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

x    

 Air Quality x    

 Biodiversity x    

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

x    

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

x    

 Active Travel x    

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

x    

Page 14



 

 

 Jobs and levels of pay x    

 Healthier high streets x    

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

x    

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing x    

 Access to housing x    

 Crime x    

 Social connectedness x    

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: There 
are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P X 0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P X 0  N  

Marriage & civil partnership P X 0  N  

Pregnancy & maternity P X 0  N  

Race/ethnicity P X 0  N  

Religion or belief P X 0  N  

Sex/gender P X 0  N  

Sexual orientation P X 0  N  

Armed forces families P X 0  N  

Rurality P X 0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P x 0  N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

There is a risk that Members are 
not aware of the Council’s 
‘above appetite’ Operational 
Risks 

Members are not able to 
ensure that risks are 
managed effectively. 

Risks impact on services. 

Operational Risks are 
reviewed by managers at 
operational level and 
those risks which are 
above appetite are 
reported to Audit 
Committee by Case 
Management. 

Page 15



 

 

Contact Officers 

John Davies, Case Management Support Services, 01539 733333, 
john.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Risk Management Process 2022 Audit Committee Agenda 21/04/22 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 22/02/22 07/04/22 

Monitoring Officer 22/02/22 07/04/22 

CMT 07/04/22 07/04/22 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 22/02/22 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 22/02/22 

Communications Team 22/02/22 

Leader  

Committee Chairman  

Portfolio Holder  

Ward Councillor(s)  

Committee 21/04/22 

Executive (Cabinet)  

Council  

 

 

Page 16

mailto:john.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


1 
 

Appendix 1 

Operational Risk Register 

 
 

 
Introduction 
 
Risk Management is an essential element of corporate governance arrangements. The process of risk management allows the Council to identify, prioritise and mitigate risks which may have a positive or 
negative effect on services. This is an important and underpinning process which ensures good value for money and also continuity of services.  
 
Risks are recognised as essential management information and so contribute towards decision making. This document lists all those risks which are considered operational in nature – in other words those 
risks that could have an impact within an operational area and require control at operational level. 
 
The Operational Risks Register is reviewed and updated every quarter by Operational Leads. Risks above the line of tolerance are a priority and so are reviewed every quarter – whilst those below tolerance 
are reviewed once a year. 
 
Summary 
 
Following a review of the Operational Risk Register during Quarter 4 2021/22 it can be seen that 11 risks (11% of risks) are above Risk Appetite - a significant reduction when compared with Q1 2021/22 when 
26 risks (23% of risks) were above Risk Appetite.  

 
Page 2: explains the Risk Matrix - showing Likelihood and Impact scales and green/blue tolerance zones. 

 
Page 3:  contains the Operational Risks currently positioned above Appetite 

 
 

 
  

P
age 17



2 
 

How to understand the Risk Matrix: 
 
This appendix contains the Council’s Operational Risks which lay above the line of risk appetite/tolerance. Each risk is plotted on a risk matrix to show degree of likelihood and impact. The greater the 
likelihood and impact the higher the priority for management. Those risks which lay above the line of ‘risk appetite’ can be seen in the blue zone of the matrix. These risks are a priority for management and 
are reviewed every quarter. Risks below the risk appetite, in the green zone, are a lower priority and so are reviewed on an annual basis. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

  

x 
 

Low 

 

x 
  

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are above ‘risk 

appetite’ (high priority) and require quarterly mitigation and 

management. Mitigation updates are listed for these risks.  

 Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are below ‘risk 

appetite’ (lower priority) and require an annual review in Quarter Four. 

 

P
age 18



3 
 

Operational Risk Register 
 

Operational Risk Register - showing those risks which lay above Risk Appetite – listed in order of overall current risk score. 

 

Operational 
Lead Area 

Risk 
No. Name Description C

u
rr

e
n

t 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

O
ve

ra
ll 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

Sc
o

re
 

Risk 
Appetite 
& Review 
Frequency Ta

rg
e

t 
Li

ke
lih

o
o

d
 

Ta
rg

e
t 

Im
p

ac
t 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ta
rg

e
t 

Sc
o

re
 

Target due 
date Mitigations and their due dates History of improvement Officer Owner 

Legal, 
Governance 
and 
Democracy 

6 Lack of Case 
Management 
system results in 
inefficiency and 
errors 

The new organisational 
model requires the 
implementation of a legal 
case management system. 
Without a Case 
Management system 
working is not sustainable, 
effective or efficient. This 
results in increased stress 
and pressure on the team 
for tasks such as running 
productivity reports, work 
levels and providing 
updates, inability to save 
important information to 
file, information is missed 
where advising in a 
colleague’s absence or that 
the time taken to provide 
advice is increased; 
info@work errors resulting 
in frequent demand on IT 
and Legal colleagues; 
effective delivery of 
Statutory role of 
Monitoring Officer; 
documentation handling 
and version control when 
managing legal matters; 
resource intensive manual 
recording, allocation and 
management of legal cases; 
legal time and costs are not 
properly captured; 
inaccuracy of evidence 
regarding costs recovery for 
litigation matters; lack of 
suitable technology results 
in a bid for additional staff 
resources. 

4 3 12 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 31/03/2022 Focused support on legal filing. Awaiting feedback from 
innovations group on case management system. 
Temporary purchase of off shelf case management 
system. Report and Action Plan in development with ICT 
with Info@Work. 09/09/21: Risk presented to Audit 
Committee. Meetings with Director and ICT. Demos of 
providers taken place and procurement timescale to be 
agreed with ICT and procurement. Joint project for case 
management system with Eden DC. ICT have advised 
that due to other projects their resources are stretched. 
ICT requesting information on budgets and resources 
available to commit to the project from Eden and SLDC 
before meeting to discuss timetable for procurement. 
07/04/22: Further support is required to progress a Case 
Management solution. 

26/08/20: Risk entered onto risk register.  
08/03/2021: Risk review resets likelihood from 
score 3 to score 4 to reflect current impacts - 
additional existing mitigation around report and 
action plan listed. 09/09/21: Risk review indicates 
that risk remains unchanged - additional 
mitigations listed. 06/12/21: Risk review indicates 
that risk remains unchanged – additional 
mitigations listed. 01/03/22: Risk review indicates 
that risk remains unchanged. 

Legal 
Governance 
Democracy Lead 
Specialist 

P
age 19



4 
 

Strategy 5 Risk that key staff 
will leave if there 
are no career 
progression 
opportunities 

Key staff may leave the 
organisation if there are no 
career progression 
opportunities 

4 3 12 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 Mar-23 Consider scope to offer more attractive T&C and career 
prospects within service - if cannot be achieved then 
escalate March 2021. 01/09/21: Able to advertise on 
slightly extended timeframe. 08/12/21: Look to create 
more flexible career paths in the new authority. greater 
clarity and improved communications around LGR will 
build employee confidence levels. 

04/08/20: risk identified.  03/03/21: Risk review 
indicates that likelihood has increased to score 4. 
03/06/21: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged. 01/09/21: Risk review indicates no 
change - additional mitigation listed. 08/12/21: 
Review indicates that risk remains unchanged - 
additional mitigation listed. 01/03/22: Risk review 
indicates no change to this risk. 

Strategy 

Case 
Management 

8 Availability and 
pace of digital 
technology and 
development 
negatively 
impacting on 
transition into new 
working model 

Working model and 
structure is dependent on 
digital development to 
achieve efficiency savings.  
Delays in digital 
development and self-serve 
availability impacts on 
ability to transition into 
new working model and 
places additional pressure 
in many areas 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 01/12/2022 Some elements of self-serve now live for Revs and Bens 
- hard launch week commencing 15.03.2021. 
Capita Project Team working on further self-serve e-
forms to allow more on line transactions to be made 
ESB payment integration due for completion in April. 
Some self-serve options available but not enough to 
make significant impact across all areas. (10/09/21: 
additional self-serve options have been developed and 
implemented across some service areas but more 
required at pace to make a significant impact.) 
Transition Workshops are underway to develop 
programme of work required to increase number and 
range of online transactions - 10/09/21: programme of 
work from sessions developed 
Capita portal is now live (Revs and Bens) and integrated 
into My Account and has had good take up since launch 
in March 
Capita e-forms project to allow further self-serve 
functionality is due to be completed by end of 
September 2021.  One form is live with a further 3 to go 
live in the coming weeks. 
06.12.21: Customer Connect programme of work has 
now been implemented based upon 3 themes, reducing 
customer demand, improve customer digital experience 
and People.  There are 26 active tasks @ 06.12.21.  
Upgrade to info@work underway with introduction of 
email connect which will bring further efficiencies 
within Q4 when due to go live. 
02.03.22: Info@work upgrade has been delayed until 
June/July 2022, further progress being made on Revs 
and Bens Capita forms due to go live in Q1.  07/04/22: 
Progress is being made on improving digital experience 
with focus on resources to undertake UAT. 

Risk entered on to Operational Risk Register 
30/09/20. 03/03/21: Risk review indicates no 
change to risk, mitigations enhanced. 10/09/21: 
Review indicates no change to current risk - 
mitigations expanded. 06/12/21: Review indicates 
no change to risk - mitigations updated. 01/03/22: 
Risk review indicates that risk remains unchanged, 
further mitigations added 02.03.22.  

Operational Lead  
- People, Welfare 
and Income 
Maximisation 

P
age 20



5 
 

Finance 0.4 Budget savings not 
identified and/or 
achieved 
(linked to Strategic 
Risk 06 Medium 
Term Financial 
Planning.) 

Please refer to the specific 
risk register for Medium 
Term Financial Planning. 
This register is located with 
Financial Services. 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 31/03/2022 Progress with budget savings are reported quarterly as 
part of corporate financial monitoring. 
Realistic projections of income and expenditure, 
including government funding proposals. 
Identify deliverable savings and new income streams. 
Monitor and resource delivery. 
All mitigations in place. 

14/03/18: Review indicates that the current risk 
has reduced in terms of likelihood due to a 
reduction in target value and progress made 
through Customer Connect. 
21/03/19: Review indicates that the risk remains 
unchanged. 02/03/21: Review indicates that 
likelihood is increased to 3 due to delays in Gov 
funding changes - and organisational capacity 
limited by Covid. Risk now above appetite. 
04/06/21: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged. 08/09/21: Risk remains unchanged - 
the target savings have reduced due to 
assumptions around timing of Local Government 
Finance reform. 07/12/21: Review indicates that 
risk remains unchanged. 01/03/22: Risk review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged - WAF 
Council will deliver savings. 

Finance Lead 
Specialist 

Human 
Resources 

5 Risk that staff 
objectives are not 
aligned with the 
Council Plan 

Whilst the Council Plan is 
an external-facing 
programme, greater clarity 
may be needed to translate 
into clear objectives for 
SLDC employees. Without 
greater clarity activities 
may not be aligned. 
22/03/22: Risk now 
influenced by LGR. 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 31/03/2023 Close working with Strategy during the Council Plan 
review process. Meeting in place 31/03/21 to discuss 
departmental. Performance management and 
measurement. New appraisal process to be introduced 
from April 2021. Mitigations added 01/06/21: 
Developing a new plan on a page to link departmental 
objectives to the Council Plan by end of October. Link 
with Appraisal process by end July - 'Your Conversation'. 
Your Conversations 85% complete end of August. Plan 
written and awaiting adoption. New SLDC Performance 
Specialist could help to address. Clear links with 
Appraisal process - 'Your Conversation'. Your 
Conversations 94% complete by end of November. 

04/08/20: Risk identified. 10/12/20: Risk reviewed - 
risk position unchanged - mitigation around close 
working added. 03/03/21: Risk review indicates 
that risk remains unchanged, mitigations added.  
01/06/21: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged - additional mitigations listed. 
08/09/21: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged at this time. Good progress with 'Your 
Conversations' with 85% completed by of August. 
06/12/21: Risk review indicates risk remains 
unchanged. Excellent progress with 'Your 
Conversations' with 94% completed by November. 
01/03/22: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged and influenced by LGR. 

Lead HR 
Specialist 

Legal, 
Governance 
and 
Democracy 

1 Windermere lake 
encroachment 
debt recovery 
does not 
significantly 
reduce the 
amounts 
outstanding. 

Reputational risk to Legal 
Services. Historically there 
has been insufficient 
resource for recovery on 
Windermere. Numerous 
challenges to the current 
square metre methodology 
have been made. Debts 
require significant Legal, 
Finance and Estates work in 
every case.  
Impact 
Unrecovered debts. 
Negative publicity. Write 
offs for unpaid debts over 6 
years old where no legal 
proceedings actioned. 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 3 6 31/03/2023 Regular progress reports to senior officers and 
members. 
Reports to Lake Admin Committee and Audit 
Committee. 
Regular 1-1 item with Assistant Director Resources. All 
mitigations in place. 09/09/21: Progress made with 
recovering debt and reports to Lake Admin Committee. 
Advertising Property Solicitor post. 01/03/22: Property 
Solicitor now in place. 

29/03/18: Reviewed.  Significant improvements 
have been made in relation to this risk.  However, it 
is considered prudent for the risk to remain 
unchanged until the impact of such improvements 
has been monitored. 14/03/19: Review indicates 
that debt has been reduced significantly and is now 
within corporate recovery rates. However the 
organisation is undergoing change and key legal 
vacancies will require maintaining - the risk position 
therefore remains unchanged in the short term. 
08/03/2021: Risk review indicates no change to risk 
position. 09/09/21: Risk review indicates that risk 
remains unchanged - additional mitigations listed. 
06/12/21: Risk Review indicates that the risk 
remains unchanged. 01/03/22: Risk review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged - debt 
recovery position has improved. Property Solicitor 
in place. 

Legal 
Governance 
Democracy Lead 
Specialist 

P
age 21



6 
 

Service 
Delivery and 
Commercial 
Services 

13 Recession – 
Impact on Parking/ 
Lake fees and 
charges, impact on 
income from 
commercial units.  

Covid-19 economic impact 
on fees and charges which 
provide an income to the 
Council. Government 
subsidies no longer 
available. There is 
improvement within the 
Lakes area. 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 3 6 31/03/2023 Review fees and charges throughout financial year 
2021/22. Reviews keep up to date with Government 
subsidies for loss of income. 

Risk identified Oct 2020. 14/12/2020: risk reviewed 
- remains unchanged in terms of position. 
03/03/21: Risk review indicates no change to risk 
scores, mitigations added. 10/09/21: review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged. 06/12/21 
Review indicates no change to risk. 01/03/22: Risk 
review indicates that risk remains the same. 
01/03/22: Risk review indicates that risk remains 
the same – risk description updated. 

  

Finance 9 Procurement - 
legal challenge 

Procurement exercise non-
compliant with legislation. 
Possible risk of legal 
challenge and damage to 
the Council's reputation  

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 Mar-23 Ensure relevant officers are suitably trained to 
understand the implications of new and existing 
legislation. Involve Procurement in complex or high 
value procurement exercises. Further training has been 
provided during 2021/22. Contract Management Board. 

Risk transferred to organisational operational risk 
register 20/08/20. 09/12/2021: risk reviewed - 
position unchanged.  02/03/21: Review indicates 
that risk is unchanged. 04/06/21: Risk review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged. 08/09/21: 
Risk remains unchanged. 07/12/21: Review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged, mitigations 
updated. 01/03/22: Risk review indicates that risk 
remains the same due to LGR resource pressures. 

Finance Lead 
Specialist 

Finance 12 Procurement - 
budgets 

Final quotation/tender 
prices higher than 
anticipated. Budget not 
available to deliver the 
required 
goods/works/services 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

2 2 4 Mar-23 Ensure officers are available with the skills to provide 
accurate estimations. Conduct market consultations 
where particularly vague over anticipated cost. 

Risk transferred to organisational operational risk 
register 20/08/20. 02/03/21: Review indicates 
impact increased to 3 due to volatility of market 
during Covid. Risk now above appetite. 04/06/21: 
Risk review indicates that risk remains unchanged. 
08/09/21: Risk remains unchanged. 07/12/21: 
Review indicates improvement with likelihood 
reducing from score 3 to score 2 - risk now below 
appetite. 01/03/22: Risk review indicates that both 
likelihood and impact have each increased to score 
3 due to due to current economic and international 
political environment - risk now above appetite. 

Finance Lead 
Specialist 

Support 
Services 

5 Availability and 
pace of digital 
technology and 
development 
negatively 
impacting on 
transition into new 
working model 

Working model and 
structure is dependent on 
digital development to 
achieve efficiency savings.  
Delays in digital 
development and self-serve 
availability. Particularly in 
relation to delivery of 
lawful meetings using 
virtual meetings 
technology. 

3 3 9 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

1 2 2 31/03/2022 Produced specification for Legal Case Management and 
HR systems. 29/09/21: Systems demonstrations in place 
and resources being sought to implement system. 
07/04/22: Progress is being made on improving digital 
experience with focus on resources to undertake User 
Acceptance Testing. 

08/12/2020: risk identified. 03/03/21: Risk 
prioritisation, existing and required mitigations 
listed, risk is above appetite. 29/09/21: Risk 
remains unchanged - additional mitigations listed. 
07/12/21: Review indicates that risk remains 
unchanged. 01/03/22: Risk review indicates that 
risk remains unchanged. 

Operational Lead 
Support Services 

Finance 5 Treasury 
Management - 
investment losses 

Investment placed with 
counterparty not on 
confirmed list or limit 
exceeded. Potential to lose 
money invested 

2 4 8 Above - 
review 
each 
quarter 

1 4 4 Mar-22 Consult counterparty list before making investment. 
Two senior officers sign off transfer of funds. Training 
provided for staff. Limited number of staff are 
authorised for placing investments. 

Risk transferred to organisational operational risk 
register 20/08/20.  09/12/2021: risk reviewed - 
position unchanged.  02/03/21: Review indicates 
that risk is unchanged. 04/06/21: Risk review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged. 08/09/21: 
Risk remains unchanged.  07/12/21: Review 
indicates that risk remains unchanged, mitigations 
updated. 01/03/22: Risk review indicates that risk 
remains unchanged - full complement of 
mitigations in place. 

Finance Lead 
Specialist 

 

P
age 22



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Review of Performance Management Framework 
and Risk Management Process 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Jonathan Brook - Leader of the Council 

Report from: Dan Hudson – Strategy Lead Specialist 

Report Author: John Davies – Case Management Support Services  

Wards:  All Wards 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Reviewing key organisational policies supports good performance with all Council Plan 
Priorities: 

Working across boundaries 

Delivering a balanced community 

A fairer South Lakeland 

Addressing the climate emergency 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 This report presents the annual review of the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework and the Risk Management Process 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) note the Performance Management Framework 2022 in appendix 1; and 

(2) note the Risk Management Process 2022 in appendix 2 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council has an existing Performance Management Framework and Risk 
Management Process which are reviewed annually.  The Council Plan, adopted by 
Full Council in February 2021 and reviewed February 2022 has been taken into 
consideration as part of the annual review of these documents.  

3.2 The Performance Management Framework describes how the Council monitors its 
performance and reflects the performance monitoring structures and schedules. The 
Performance Management Framework 2022 has been aligned with the updated 
Council Plan and has an accessible format. 

3.5 The Risk Management Process describes how the Council identifies and manages 
operational and strategic level risks. The Risk Management Process 2022 has been 
reviewed to include reference to the Risk Training Programme - and the ‘essential 

Page 23

Item No.6



status’ of training for key roles. Also improved clarity regarding positive and negative 
risks has been provided. The Risk Management Process has an accessible format. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Performance Management Framework 2022 

2 Risk Management Process 2022 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Officers have reviewed best practice relating to performance and risk management. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 No alternative options recommended – performance and risk policies require regular 
review as they form an essential element of corporate governance arrangements. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement implications are associated with the 
reviewed documents. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no resource implications are associated with the reviewed documents. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with the reviewed documents. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Reviewing performance management and risk management policies has a positive 
impact on performance with Council Plan priorities. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

x    

 Air Quality x    

 Biodiversity x    

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

x    

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

x    

 Active Travel x    

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

x    

 Jobs and levels of pay x    

Page 24



 Healthier high streets x    

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

x    

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing x    

 Access to housing x    

 Crime x    

 Social connectedness x    

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: 
Reviewing performance management and risk management policies has a positive 
impact on performance with Council Plan priorities. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P X 0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P X 0  N  

Marriage & civil partnership P X 0  N  

Pregnancy & maternity P X 0  N  

Race/ethnicity P X 0  N  

Religion or belief P X 0  N  

Sex/gender P X 0  N  

Sexual orientation P X 0  N  

Armed forces families P X 0  N  

Rurality P X 0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P x 0  N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Not to reviewing performance 

management and risk 

management policies 

The consequence of not 

updating policies is to 

weaken corporate 

governance arrangements 

Policies are updated on an 

annual basis and 

approvals sought prior to 

implementation 

Contact Officers 

John Davies, Case Management Support Services, 01539 733333, 
john.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Page 25

mailto:john.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Council Plan South Lakeland District Council Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 22/02/22 07/04/22 

Monitoring Officer 22/02/22 07/04/22 

CMT 07/04/22 07/04/22 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 22/02/22 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 22/02/22 

Communications Team 22/02/22 

Leader  

Committee Chairman  

Portfolio Holder  

Ward Councillor(s)  

Committee 21/04/22 

Executive (Cabinet)  

Council  

 

 

Page 26

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/council-documents/council-plan/


Appendix 1 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Performance Management Framework 

2022 
Version 14.0 December 2021 

  

Page 27

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

Contents 

Performance Management Framework 2022 ........................................................................ 1 

Version control ...................................................................................................................... 3 

How we review this document ............................................................................................... 3 

Performance introduction ...................................................................................................... 3 

Purpose and aim of the framework........................................................................................ 4 

Performance reporting process ............................................................................................. 7 

 

  

Page 28



 

3 

Version control  

Please note for previous review history please refer to earlier versions of this document. 

Version By Date Comments 

9.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

31/03/2016 Reviewed – no changes required. 

10.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

01/03/17 Refresh of framework in line with 
Council Plan 2014-2019 (Updated 
in February 2017) and in line with 
changes in Committee structure. 

11.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

29/03/18 Reviewed – no changes required. 

12.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

14/03/19 Reviewed in line with Council Plan. 
Council Plan values and priorities 
updated to reflect changes. 

13.0 Case Management Officer 11/02/21 Reviewed in line with Council Plan 
and new organizational model. 
Consultation with Strategy Lead and 
Strategy Specialist. 

14.0 Case Management Officer 29/12/21 Reviewed – reference to 
performance appraisal ‘Your 
Conversation’, Commissioning 
Strategy and Portfolio Holder 
reports. Finance schedule updated. 

How we review this document 

Case Management Support Services will facilitate an annual review involving: 

 Lead Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist for committee requirements 

 Lead Human Resources Specialist for employees 

 Lead Finance Specialist for financial reporting timescales 

 Lead Strategy and Strategy Specialist to align with the Council Plan and Operational 
planning. 

Performance introduction 

Performance management is about the delivery of the goals of an organisation and its 

community.  It needs much more than just back office systems, processes, plans and 

indicators.  Successful performance management needs leaders, managers and employees 

to see their purpose to continually improve what they do - and the services they provide to 

their communities.  

 

Page 29



 

4 

Performance management must add value.  In order to do this the processes employed 

must achieve the right balance between effort and results.  

 

Performance management is central to the political process – performance information is 
reported regularly to Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees.   
 
The Performance Management Framework recognises that improvement comes from 
people and process, and that the framework will not operate without employee awareness.   
 
It will be about positive endorsement, continuous improvement, innovation and creativity.   
 
In particular, the processes should emphasize the significance of performance management 
for enabling service improvement, and build links into other improvement processes - and 
into training and development. 
 
Effective performance management: 

1. Is being clear about the purpose of the Council 

2. Has a strong emphasis on achieving outcomes 

3. Has robust and effective planning systems which ensure the allocation of resources 
follow service demands 

4. Monitors delivery against clear targets and acts upon them 

5. Minimises the risk of serious error 

Additionally our political and administrative leadership makes performance a priority, and 
the clear vision motivates, enthuses and empowers employees – an organisation that has a 
culture that is enabling and empowering.  

Purpose and aim of the framework 

The purpose and aim of our Performance Management Framework is to make sure we 

deliver: 

 the right services 

 at the right time 

 in the right way 

 value for money 

Our Performance Management Framework sets out how we put this into practice: 

 providing an overview of the steps to be taken, followed by a brief explanation of 

each 

 summarising Member and Officer performance management roles and 

responsibilities 

 listing reporting arrangements for various Council and Partnership plans and 

strategies 

Page 30



 

5 

Our Performance Management Framework follows the sequence of: 

Plan Do  Review 

Plan means being clear about what we are setting out to achieve and how we are going to 

achieve it 

Do means putting our plans into action in the most efficient and effective way 

Review means monitoring results to ensure that we: 

 achieve what was planned and to the agreed standard 

 can compare our performance with other service providers and with our own past 

achievements to show trends 

 have relevant and timely information to feed back into the process 

 can inform stakeholders accordingly 

Performance management is the responsibility of everyone in the Council. A summary of 

the key roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors is set out below: 

Who actions Plan - Vision, Planning, 
Commitment 

Do – Action and 
Results 

Review – Monitoring 
Review and Response 

Councillors Approve the Council 
Plan, key strategies and 
Budget. 

Hold the Cabinet to 
account. 

Scrutinise the 
Council’s 
performance. 

Undertake specific 
reviews of any identified 
performance issues 
which can be 
undertaken through the 
Council’s arrangements 
for scrutiny. 

Cabinet Formulate the Council’s 
priorities. 

Monitor and respond  to 
performance data 

Challenge performance 
of all services. 

Ensure strategic 
delivery of Council 
Plan . 

Monitor performance 
with Portfolio Holder 
plans via regular 
meetings with 
Operational Leads and 
Lead Specialists. 

Corporate 
Management 

Oversee Performance 
Management Framework 

Commitment to Council’s 
priorities through the 
allocation of 
responsibilities and 
resources 

Strategic 
responsibility for 
delivery of 
Council’s priorities 
including 
monitoring 
performance 

Take a view on 
service 
underperformance 
and manage the 
Council Plan 

Ensure that Operational 
Leads and Lead 
Specialists annual 
performance appraisals 
underpin the 
performance with the 
Council Plan. 

Review the Council 
Plan Performance 
Report every quarter. 

Page 31



 

6 

Who actions Plan - Vision, Planning, 
Commitment 

Do – Action and 
Results 

Review – Monitoring 
Review and Response 

Operational 
Leads and 
Lead 
Specialists 

Ensure that operational 
plans underpin 
performance with the 
Council Plan. 

Produce and sign off 
operational plans. 

Contribute to the 
Council’s corporate 
priorities and objectives. 

Manage projects applying 
project management 
techniques appropriately. 

Ensure that 
managers’ annual 
performance 
appraisals 
underpin 
performance with 
operational 
requirements.  

Provide data in 
accordance with 
performance 
reporting 
requirements. 

Maintain 
operational budget 
and implement 
efficiencies 

Hold 1-2-1’s with 
managers as required 
to manage performance 
with key activity – this 
may include projects as 
well as day to day work. 

Monitor performance at 
operational level. 

Respond to operational 
and organisational 
workflow and workload 
issues. 

Support employees to 
deliver their objectives 
and manage employee 
performance. 

Employees Responsible for personal 
development and 
performance 

Understand how 
work contributes to 
vision, priorities 
and objectives 

Raise specific 
issues regarding 
performance with 
Operational Leads 
and Lead 
Specialists 

Ensure that activity 
listed within individual 
performance reviews is 
implemented on 
schedule 

 

 

  

Page 32



 

7 

Performance reporting process 

The Council will make decisions on the priorities, risks, activities, ownership, targets and 

measures necessary to meet the needs of South Lakeland. This process involves a ‘Plan 

Do Review’ approach with six steps. These steps are Vision, Planning, Commitment, 

Action, Monitoring and Review – and are detailed below. 

1. Vision 

Performance management begins with a clear vision. The Council’s corporate vision is 

contained in the current Council Plan. The vision is underpinned by our agreed values, 

which influence the way we work. The vision lies at the heart of everything we do. 

2. Planning 

The Council’s priorities are set out in the Council Plan and are informed by the Council’s 

approach to service delivery 

 

The Council must focus must on how we and our partners can achieve positive outcomes 
for our communities - to improve their quality of life and the services we provide for them.  
 
When planning, the Council must ensure it understands South Lakeland, our communities 
and their needs based on a detailed knowledge of key demographic data, customer 
satisfaction and perceptions.  
 
As a Community Leader, the Council should engage with and share information, where 
applicable, with partners particularly the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership, the Health 
and Wellbeing Board, Parish and Town Councils and Community Groups. 
 
We must also be aware of available resources, anticipated risks and levels of current 
performance when setting priorities and developing Plans.  
 
The Council’s services are delivered through plans and strategies at all levels, both 
independently and in partnership with other service providers and provide a link between 
our high-level Vision and strategic priorities and team and individual performance. The 
Commissioning Strategy is a key part of this process. 
 

3. Commitment 

The priorities for South Lakeland are set at the highest level.  These priorities are not only 
supported by the Council’s strategic and operational plans but also individual employee 
appraisals.  Managing employees’ performance is a continuous process.   
 
It involves making sure that the performance of employees contributes to the goals of their 
teams and the business as a whole.  Performance monitoring which includes risk 
management activity ensures that the key priorities are met. 
 

Page 33



 

8 

Organisational commitment is demonstrated through the allocation of responsibilities and 
resources.  
 
Members’ responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Constitution.   
 
Officers’ responsibilities are contained in the Constitution, Job Descriptions and annual 
appraisals.  
 
Ownership of responsibility is further supported by:  

 The Personal Qualities Framework links organisational targets and actions with 
those of individual employees  

 Commitment to training and development through the Corporate Training 
Programme and Training Budget  

Financial resources are allocated to the Council’s Priorities through the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and annual Revenue and Capital Budgets.  Resources provided by other 
bodies are secured through external funding bids.  
 
Commitments towards achieving South Lakeland and Cumbria Strategy priorities are 

demonstrated through membership of Boards, Task Groups and Officer Working Groups. 

 

4. Action 

To meet Council Plan priorities plans will implemented at strategic, operational and 

individual levels. Delivery will be in line with the key policies and strategies as listed in the 

current Council Plan approved by Full Council. 

Measures of success 

Leadership Team will set measures and monitor activity. 

Performance management will allow consistency and better access to information regarding 

ownership, service activity and measures, and to improve monitoring and reporting 

procedures.  

Every stage of the performance management process relies on evidence and data to allow 

the organisation to make judgments on what South Lakeland and the Council’s needs are; 

what its customers’ needs are; what it has achieved and how it compares.  It is vital that 

data is high quality, reliable, and timely. As part of a rolling programme of scorecard review, 

regular assurance checks will be carried out and reported to Members and Officers. 

Financial Management 

Financial Management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the running of the 

Council, including the policy framework and budget.   

All Members and Officers have a duty to abide by the highest standards of probity in dealing 

with financial issues.   

Page 34



 

9 

This is facilitated by ensuring everyone is clear about the standards to which they are 

working and the controls that are in place to ensure that these standards are met.  The 

Corporate Finance Update report is presented to advise Members of the financial position 

of the Council each quarter and explanations of variances are provided.   

The report is presented to Members.  The report summarises the General Fund revenue 

and capital positions with monitoring updates for large and volatile costs and income, 

approved savings, Treasury Management, Revenue Collection and Sundry and Long term 

debtors.  

The Corporate Finance Update report includes the following areas: 

1. Revenue Budget monitoring 

2. Budget Savings monitoring 

3. Capital Budget monitoring 

4. Treasury Management review   

Personal Qualities Framework 

It is important to ensure that all employees are aware of how the Personal Qualities 

Framework and performance appraisal ‘fits’ with the Performance Management Framework. 

In terms of the hierarchy of strategic and business planning the performance appraisal 

process sits as follows: 

1. Council Plan 

2. Operational level plans 

3. Personal Qualities Framework 

The above plans are aspirational i.e. they are the statement of either new objectives or an 

intention to improve service/performance on existing objectives.  Therefore individual 

performance appraisals will reflect this i.e. the performance objectives will be about 

implementing new services, improving existing services, reducing cost etc. The Personal 

Qualities Framework also includes two other factors, Personal Qualities and Development.   

Personal Qualities reflects the way in which employees conduct themselves and the 

manner in which business is undertaken. Adherence to these qualities will support the 

successful pursuit of objectives. Development acknowledges that for employees at all levels 

there will be gaps between current performance and target performance which cannot be 

addressed by additional resources or new technology but by enhancing the skills, 

knowledge and confidence of the post-holder.  

Performance Appraisals are not the only corporately supported performance / 

communication mechanisms available.  For line managers performance appraisals form 

part of a tripartite employee management portfolio. 

 Performance Appraisal ‘Your Conversation’ 

 Team Meetings 

Page 35



 

10 

 One to One’s (1-2-1’s) 

Managers and employees need to be able to differentiate between the aims and content of 

the various meetings. 

1-2-1’s between managers and employees should be conducted on a regular basis and are 

an opportunity to: 

 Manage tasks and prioritise work 

 Tackle day to day supervision and resource issues 

 Monitor and evaluate incoming and outgoing work 

They can also be used to visit the performance objectives and individual development 

needs and, where appropriate, amend/update the performance review and developmental 

review sections of the performance appraisal documentation. 

Managers should brief their teams once a month as a minimum and should be the 

opportunity to: 

 Communicate corporate information  

 Discuss service issues 

 Raise awareness of topical issues facing the Council 

 Listen to ideas and discuss innovative solutions on issues facing the team, service 

and Council 

The aim of the Personal Qualities Framework is to ensure the performance appraisal 

process is embedded within organisational culture and practice rather than be a stand-

alone, once a year activity. 

5. Review 

Performance data will be collected and areas for concern identified. Areas that are not on 

track will be commented on by employees with ownership at weekly meetings. 

6. Monitoring 

Feedback and other information generated in delivering services enables us to actively 

monitor performance and report as necessary to Committees, management and  

operational teams, individuals, members of the public and external agencies.  Portfolio 

Holder reports also provide Committees with sight of progress – and this includes Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee. Performance monitoring is undertaken in accordance with the 

following: 

Quarter Actions 

Quarter 1  
April 

Complete a review of and update the policies and strategies integral to the 
Performance Management Framework. 
Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and following this to Cabinet. 

Page 36



 

11 

Quarter Actions 

Employee appraisal process is started. 

May Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data which details progress 
with towards priorities and measures and the management of risks. 
Statutory deadline for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts 
and Annual Governance Statement. 

June Start of Audit of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement. 

Quarter 2  
July 

Council approves performance framework related policies and strategies. 
Update the Council Plan. The draft budget strategy with the Medium Term 
Financial Plan is prepared. 
Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and following this to Cabinet. 
Publish the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan  
Target for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement.  

August Consultation on the draft Council Plan. 
Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data. 

September Employee mid-year Job Appraisals are completed.  
Statutory deadline for completion of external audit of Council’s Annual 
Financial Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

Quarter 3  
October 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and following this to Cabinet.  

November Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data. 

December Approve the Council Plan 
Budget options are aligned to priorities 
Consultation on the draft budget.  

Quarter 4  
January 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and following this to Cabinet. 

February Finalised the Council Budget and Capital Programme.  
Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data. 

March Publish the Council’s operational plans including the workforce element. 

 

Detailed information regarding costs, performance and benchmarking of services will be 

reported along with a value for money calculation. This will bring essential business 

information to decision makers – for more detail see below: 

Costs 

 Costs of individual services 

Benefits 

 Measures that show performance 

 Benchmarking for comparing with other authorities 

Value for Money 

Page 37



 

12 

 Cost per head of population 

Results of service performance are published internally and externally in the Council’s 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee reports.  

In addition, the Council provides employees, Members and the public with feedback on the 

Council’s performance in a number of digestible formats.  This includes the annual report of 

our performance over a 12 month period.  

6. Review and response 

Reviewing and taking corrective action are essential steps as they distinguish performance 
management from performance monitoring.  Action taken is recorded to provide an audit 
trail and evidence of improvement, and could include any or all of the following:  

 Reassessing the need for a particular service  

 Re-designing standards, measures and targets  

 Reviewing systems and processes  

 Re-evaluating resource requirements  

Customer feedback is used to support the review process, while benchmarking helps to set 
Council performance into context by comparing processes and measure results, for 
example when carrying out service reviews or value-for-money exercises.  
 
Implementation of this Framework is overseen by the Corporate Management Team. 
 

Page 38



Appendix 2 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Risk Management Process 2022 
Version 11.0 December 2021  

Page 39

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

2 

Contents 

Version control ...................................................................................................................... 3 

How we review this document ............................................................................................... 3 

Risk Management Process ................................................................................................... 4 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 4 

What is Risk Management? ............................................................................................ 4 

Corporate processes and risk ......................................................................................... 4 

Why do we need a Risk Management Process? ............................................................ 4 

Roles and Responsibilities .............................................................................................. 6 

Strategic Risks: ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Operational Risks: ................................................................................................................. 6 

Partnership Risks: ................................................................................................................. 8 

Links with Audit findings: ....................................................................................................... 8 

Risk Management – Five practical steps ............................................................................... 9 

Step 1 - Identifying the risks ............................................................................................ 9 

Step 2 - Analysing the risks ............................................................................................ 9 

Step 3 - Risk Profiling and prioritisation .......................................................................... 9 

Step 4 - Action Planning ................................................................................................. 9 

Step 5 - Risk management monitoring and reporting framework .................................. 10 

 

  

Page 40



 

3 

Version control 

Please note for previous review history please refer to earlier versions of this document. 

Version By Date Comments 

5.0 
Risk and Performance 
Officer 

January 
2015 

Reviewed – management of 
partnership risks better defined 

6.0 
Risk and Performance 
Officer 

March 
2016 

Reviewed - no significant changes 
required Reference to fraud and 
corruption risks added as required 
by audit. 

7.0 
Risk and Performance 
Officer 

March 
2017 

Reviewed – management and 
escalation of operational risks 
clarified on page 4 

8.0 
Performance and Risk 
Officer 

April 2018 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

9.0 
Performance and Risk 
Officer 

April 2019 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

10.0 
Case Management Officer November 

2020 
Reviewed to include changes 
brought about by the new 
organisational model 

11.0 
Case Management Officer December 

2021 
Reference to Risk Training 
Programme and ‘essential status’. 
Improved clarity regarding positive 
and negative risks. 

How we review this document 

Case Management Support services will involve Strategy and review in line with 

government guidance. 

  

Page 41



 

4 

Risk Management Process 

 

Introduction 

This document outlines how South Lakeland District Council is taking on its responsibility to 
manage risks and opportunities using a structured and focused approach. 
 
This process will enable the Council to identify: 

1. Partnership risks 
2. Strategic risks 
3. Operational risks 
4. assess the risks for likelihood and impact 
5. identify mitigating controls  
6. allocate responsibility for both risks and controls. 

 

What is Risk Management? 

A risk is an event which has a negative or positive effect on the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives. Risk management is both the awareness of risks and the management 
processes that are directed towards effective reduction or mitigation of risks. Identifying and 
dealing with the principal risks facing an authority enables it to identify the key actions it 
must take to deliver its objectives. 
 

Corporate processes and risk 

These corporate processes require the consideration of risk.   

 Council Planning Process 

 Project Management 

 Financial Planning 

 Partnerships 

 Cabinet/Council reports 

 Business Continuity 

 Health and safety 

 Fraud and corruption 

 Insurance 
 

Why do we need a Risk Management Process? 

Risk management will strengthen the ability of South Lakeland District Council to achieve its 
objectives and enhance the value of services provided, to make the area a place where 
people want to live and work, where they are able to enjoy a high quality of life.  
 

Page 42



 

5 

Risk management is also an essential part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy/ framework on Corporate Governance that has been adopted by SLDC. 
Alongside Corporate Governance the Council is required to publish an annual assurance 
statement in respect of internal controls. This determines that the Council is responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk. 
 

Page 43



 

6 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The Portfolio Holder with responsibility for risk management and the Chief Executive jointly 
have overall responsibility for risk management throughout the Council.  
 
The Council maintains a Risk Management Training Programme for both members and 
officers. Training has essential status for members in key roles – for example Audit 
Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet. 
 

Strategic Risks: 

Corporate Management Team is pivotal in the management of the Council’s high level risks 
by identifying and reviewing existing risks and ensuring mitigation. These decisions will 
determine which risks are included on the Strategic Risk Register.  
 
Corporate Management Team reviews the risks along with corporate plan performance on a 
quarterly basis. 
 
Case Management Support Services maintains the strategic risks and mitigating controls 
each quarter on behalf of the Corporate Management Team. Case Management Support 
Services also organises appropriate training for staff and members and reviews the risk 
process. Case Management Support Services prepare quarterly monitoring reports 
covering risks and performance with the Council Plan for 
 

1. Corporate Management Team 
2. Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
3. Cabinet 
4. Audit Committee 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will monitor the mitigation of the Strategic Risks via 
quarterly performance reporting. This ensures that all senior elected members understand 
the Strategic Risks and their mitigating controls. 
 

Operational Risks: 

Operational Leads and Lead Specialists will identify, manage and monitor their operational 
risks. They will review these operational risks and record their review history for each risk 
on a quarterly basis. Operational Leads and Lead Specialists can escalate an operational 
risk to Corporate Management Team if they feel that the risk is more strategic in nature or 
that they need help with mitigation.  
 
In this way operational risks are identified and managed - and where necessary escalated 
for further control. The management of operational risks is facilitated by guidance provided 

Page 44



 

7 

on the front page of the staff intranet – the five step risk management cycle, templates and 
training slides are available and training is provided.  
 
Operational Risks above tolerance are reported to Audit Committee in Quarter 1 each year. 
  

Page 45



 

8 

Partnership Risks: 

There are two kinds of risks involved in partnership working. The first are the risks that the 
Council faces because it is a partner. These risks will be identified by the key partnership 
lead and managed via service plans and if necessary escalated as a potential strategic risk.  
 
The Second risks are the risks that the partnership faces as a whole. Where a key 
partnership is significant enough to warrant risk management arrangements these risks will 
be reviewed and managed by the partnership itself.  
 
The risks will be communicated back to the Council via the Council’s representative on that 
Partnership.  
 
These risks may then bring about new strategic risks which would then be subject to the 
Council’s performance management arrangements. 
 
 

Links with Audit findings: 

Internal audit is responsible for undertaking periodic assessment of the Council’s risk 
management processes as part of reviewing of corporate governance arrangements. 
 
Internal Audit will also as a result of their risk assessments in other areas of the Councils 
operations highlight to Corporate Management Team further risks for their consideration 
and possible inclusion on the Strategic Risk Register. These risks are then performance 
managed as part of the quarterly performance monitoring process 
 

Page 46



 

9 

Risk Management – Five practical steps 

Managing risks involves adopting a systematic and robust process. The following risk 
management cycle describes the processes that should be followed.  
 

Step 1 - Identifying the risks 

When identifying risks it is suggested that as a minimum the following categories of risk be 
used. They will act as a prompt and as a trigger for officers involved in the identification 
process. These categories are Financial (including Fraud and Corruption), Environmental, 
Customer (including Equalities), Reputational and Legislative.  
 
Risks can be positive as well as negative. These positive risks or ‘opportunities’ should be 
identified and if necessary managed via mitigations to maximise benefit. A project can be 
thought of as a positive risk with the aim of achieving benefit - but there will be risks that 
need managing for success. 
 
Risks can also be strategic or operational in nature and it is important that both types of risk 
are managed effectively. If risks identified at an operational level are considered to be 
strategic in nature they should be brought to the attention of Corporate Management Team 
by Operational Leads and Lead Specialists. 
 

Step 2 - Analysing the risks 

It will help understanding of each risk if analysis of the vulnerabilities, triggers and 
consequences are completed. This better understanding will aid the next step in the 
process - prioritisation of risks. There may be Equalities considerations when completing 
this analysis work. 
 

Step 3 - Risk Profiling and prioritisation 

A standard prioritisation matrix is used across the Council to plot the risks in terms of 
likelihood and impact. Once completed this risk profile clearly illustrates the risks which are 
priorities for management. The Council’s line of risk tolerance or appetite is set on the 
matrix. This line determines which risks cannot be tolerated and must be managed down, 
transferred or avoided.  
 

Step 4 - Action Planning 

Most risks are capable of being managed – either by managing down the likelihood or 
impact or both. Action plans will also identify the resources required to deliver the 
improvements, key dates and deadlines and critical success factors. There may be 
Equalities issues when agreeing risk actions 
 

Page 47



 

10 

Step 5 - Risk management monitoring and reporting 

framework 

Quarterly monitoring of the effective management of risks through Overview and Scrutiny 

including regular reporting on council plan performance. 

 

Page 48



P
age 49

Item
 N

o.7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

P
age 51

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 59

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 64

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

18

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

✓

P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71

Item
 N

o.8



Commercial in confidence

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 73

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

. 

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 79

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 80

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-the-united-kingdom


Commercial in confidence

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 82

https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/6777/documents/72117/default/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-sustainability-and-the-section-114-regime


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 83

https://committees.parliament.uk/work/1138/timeliness-of-local-auditor-reporting-on-local-government-in-england/publications/


Commercial in confidence

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/10/news-release-2020-21-
audited-accounts-psaa/

P
age 84

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/10/news-release-2020-21-audited-accounts-psaa/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 85

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 87

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/09/psaa-publishes-its-prospectus-and-procurement-strategy-and-invites-eligible-bodies-to-opt-in-from-april-2023/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-28/procurement-strategy/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 88



Commercial in confidence

Climate change risk: A good practice guide for Audit and 
Risk Assurance Committees - National Audit Office (NAO) 
Report

P
age 89

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 90

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-and-net-zero-in-england/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 91

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/cyber-security-and-information-risk-guidance/


P
age 92



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Level 8 
110 Queen Street 
GLASGOW 
G1 3BX 

 

 

 
 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2021 Module 6 DWP Reporting Framework 
Instruction (Applicable to England only) Reporting accountants’ report for the Housing Benefit 
Subsidy claim form MPF720A, year ended 31 March 2021 

This report is produced in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter with the South Lakeland 
District Council dated 12 July 2021 and the standardised engagement terms in Appendix 2 of HBAP 
Module 1 2020/21 issued by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for the purpose of reporting 
to the Section 151 Officer of South Lakeland District Council and the DWP. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of the Local Authority and the DWP and solely for 
the purpose of facilitating the claim for Housing Benefit Subsidy on form MPF720A dated 28 February 
2022. 

This report should not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise 
permitted by the standardised engagement terms), without our prior written consent. Without assuming 
or accepting any responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any party other than the local 
authority and the DWP, we acknowledge that the local authority and/or the DWP may be required to 
disclose this report to parties demonstrating a statutory right to see it. 

This report is designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Local Authority and the DWP as 
described in the DWP HBAP reporting framework instruction 2020/21.  

This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied by any other party for any 
purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Local Authority and the DWP which obtains access 
to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so entirely at its own 
risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our work 
or this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 
nature, which is caused by the reliance of anyone other than the addressees on our work or this report. 

Respective responsibilities of the Local Authority and the reporting accountant 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with HBAP Modules 1 and 6 2020/21 issued by the DWP, 
which highlight the terms under which DWP has agreed to engage with reporting accountants. 

The Section 151 Officer of the Local Authority has responsibilities under the Income-related Benefits 
(Subsidy to Authorities) Order 1998. The section 151 Officer is also responsible for ensuring that the 
Local Authority maintains accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the 
financial position of the Local Authority. It is also the Section 151 Officer’s responsibility to extract 
relevant financial information from the Local Authority’s accounting records, obtain relevant information 
held by any officer of the Local Authority and complete the attached form MPF720A in accordance with 
the relevant framework set out by the DWP. 

 

 

Housing Benefit Unit 
Housing Delivery Division 
DWP Business Finance & Housing Delivery Directorate 
Room B120D 
Warbeck House 
Blackpool 
Lancashire 
FY2 0UZ 
 
 
Section 151 officer South Lakeland District Council - Helen Smith 

28 February 2022 
 

Page 93

Item No.9



 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

 

Our approach 

For the purpose of the HBAP engagement we have been provided with a signed copy of form MPF720A 
2020/21 dated 30 April 2021 by the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer remains solely 
responsible for the completion of the MPF720A and is the signatory on the local authority’s certificate on 
claim form MPF720A. 

Our engagement was carried out in accordance with the DWP reporting framework instruction, which 
has been prepared in accordance with the International Standard on Related (ISRS) 4400, Engagement 
to perform agreed-upon-procedures regarding financial information. The purpose of the engagement is 
to perform the specific test requirements determined by the DWP on the defined sample basis as set out 
in HBAP Modules of the HBAP reporting framework instruction on the Local Authority’s form MPF720A 
dated 28 February 2022, and to report the results of those procedures to the Local Authority and the 
DWP.  

The results of these are reported on in appendices A, B, C and D. 

Inherent limitations 

The procedures specified in DWP’s HBAP Reporting framework instruction does not constitute an 
examination made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which 
would be the expression of assurance on the contents of the local authority’s claim for Housing Benefit 
subsidy on form MPF720A. Accordingly, we do not express such assurance. Had we performed 
additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the local authority’s claim for Housing 
Benefit subsidy on form MPF720A in accordance with generally accepted auditing or review standards, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates 
only to the Local Authority’s form MPF720A and does not extend to any financial statements of the Local 
Authority, taken as a whole. 

This engagement will not be treated as having any effect on our separate duties and responsibilities as 
the external auditor of the Local Authority’s financial statements. Our audit work on the financial 
statements of the Local Authority is carried out in accordance with our statutory obligations and is 
subject to separate terms and conditions. Our audit report on the Local Authority’s financial statements 
is made solely to the Local Authority’s members, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Local 
Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Local Authority and the Local Authority’s members, as a body, for our audit work, 
for our audit reports, or for the opinions we have formed in respect of that audit. 

Summary of HBAP report 

Summary of Initial Testing 

In accordance with HBAP modules an initial sample of cases was completed for all general expenditure 
cells. We have re-performed a sample of the Local Authority’s testing and confirm the tests we have 
carried out concur with the Local Authority’s results: 

Cell 011  Non HRA Rent Rebate  

The population for this cell is below 100 cases and, as a result of several CAKE findings, additional 
testing was required for this cell. As such all cases within cell 11 were tested in full by the Council. No 
claims were found to be in error. 

Cell 094 Rent Allowance 

Initial testing of Cell 94 identified one case where the Local Authority had incorrectly assessed student 
loan income, this led to an underpayment of benefits. See Appendix B for further details. 

Cell 225 Modified Schemes 

The population for this cell is below 100 cases and, as a result of several CAKE findings, additional 
testing was required for this cell. As such all cases within cell 225 were tested in full by the Council. No 
claims were found to be in error. 

 
Page 94



 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

Completion of Modules 

The Specific Test Requirements set out in Module 1 Appendix 3 have been completed, including testing 
required by Modules 2 and 5 as detailed below.  
 
Completion of Module 2 

Testing of the module 2 identified no issues.  

Completion of module 5  

We have completed the questionnaire for the appropriate software supplier and no issues were 
identified.  

Summary of testing arising from Cumulative Assurance Knowledge and Experience  

In line with the requirements of HBAP Modules we have undertaken CAKE testing based upon the 
preceding Qualification Letter. Where appropriate the Authority has completed testing of the sub 
populations for: 

 Non-HRA Rent Rebates – misclassification of expenditure between cells 012 and 013 and cells 
014 and 015, classification of overpayments, incorrect rent used, incorrect end date used and 
incorrect earned income used. 

 Rent Allowances – incorrect childcare costs used in the benefit calculation. 
 Rent Allowances – incorrect working tax credits used in the benefit calculation. 
 Modified Schemes – omission of supplementary War Widows Pension from the benefit 

calculation. 
 Rent Allowances- incorrect classification of overpayments.  
 Cell 094 Assessed Income uprating error. 

 

We have re-performed a sample of the Authority’s testing and confirm the tests we have carried out 
concur with the Authority’s results. These results are outlined in the appropriate appendix. 

The following CAKE tests have returned no errors and are considered as closed: 

 Non-HRA Rent Rebates – misclassification of expenditure between cells 012 and 013 and cells 
014 and 015, classification of overpayments, incorrect rent used, incorrect end date used and 
incorrect earned income used. 

 Rent Allowances – incorrect childcare costs used in the benefit calculation 
 Modified Schemes – omission of supplementary War Widows Pension from the benefit 

calculation 
 Cell 094 Assessed Income uprating error. 

Summary paragraph/ending of letter 

For the form MPF720A dated 28 February 2022 for the year ended 31 March 2021 we have completed 
the specific test requirements detailed in the DWP reporting framework instruction HBAP and have 
identified the following results set out in Appendix A, B, C and D. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Glasgow 

28 February 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Page 95



 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

 

 

Appendix A Exceptions/errors found 

Cell 114 Expenditure misclassification – Incorrect classification of eligible overpayments 
Cell Total: £143,014 
Cell Population: 557 cases 
Headline Cell: £14,118,943 
 

It was identified in the 2018/19 and 2019/20 claim and reported in the HBAP Report for both years that 
Cell 114 included overpayments that should properly have been classified as Cell 113 LA error and 
administrative delay eligible overpayments. Testing within the initial testing for 2019/20 included 3 cases 
(value £270) within Cell 114 eligible overpayments and in all cases the overpayments were classified 
appropriately. However, as a result of the errors in the previous years' claim, additional CAKE testing 
was undertaken of Cell 114 overpayments, in line with the HBAP approach. 

 
Additional Testing 

Testing of an additional random sample of 40 cases identified 2 cases (total value £547) where the 
dates have been incorrectly applied and part of the overpayment should have been classified in cell 113 
not cell 114. Consequently, cell 114 is overstated and cell 113 is correspondingly understated. There is 
no effect on cell 094. 

Values ranged in value from £48 to £90. 

The following table is based on these findings: 

 

Sample 

Movement / 

brief note of 

error: 

Original 

cell total:  

Sample 

error: 

Sample 

value: 

Percentage 

error rate (to 

two decimal 

places): 

Cell 

adjustment: 

    [CT] [SE] [SV] [SE/SV] 
[SE/SV times 

CT] 

Initial sample - 3 

cases 
No errors £143,014 £0 £270     

Additional sample - 

40 cases 

Two errors – 

misclassification 

of overpayments 

£143,014 £137 £11,945     

Combined sample 

45 cases 

Two errors – 

misclassificatio

n of 

overpayments 

£143,014 £137 £12,215 1.13% £1,616 

Adjustment 
Cell 114 is 

Overstated 
      1.13% £1,616 

Corresponding 

Adjustment 

Cell 113 is 

Understated 
      1.13% £1,616 

Total 
corresponding 
adjustment 

Total 
adjustment to 
Cell 114 and 
113 

        -£1,616 

 

 

 

Page 96



 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B Observations 

Cell 094 Overpaid benefit – Earned Income calculation error additional issue 

As a result of the additional testing on Cell 114 classification of eligible overpayments, it was discovered 
that there were three cases where income was incorrectly assessed in the benefit calculation: 

 One case (value £4,434) where a claimant was in receipt of pension savings credit and income 
was amended without notification that the assessed income figure has been amended by the 
pension service. Cell 114 is overstated by £51 and cell 102 is understated by £51.  

 One case (value £2,252) where there was an error in the net pay calculation. Cell 114 is 
understated by £1 and Cell 102 is overstated by £1.  

 One case (value £4.122) where an incorrect income figure was used. Cell 114 is overstated by 
£16 and Cell 103 is understated by £16. 

In line with Module 6 paragraph 50, no further work has been completed in relation to these issues. They 
will be reviewed as part of our CAKE work on the 2021/22 claim.  
 
Cell 094 Underpayment of benefit student loan income error 
 

Our initial testing of cell 94 identified one case (value £3,812) where student loan income was calculated 
incorrectly resulting in an underpayment of benefits. As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which 
has not been paid, the underpayment does not affect subsidy and has not, therefore, been classified as 
an error for subsidy purposes. This error could also result in the overpayment of benefit, so additional 
testing has been undertaken. 

As the population for this cell was below 100 cases, all cases were tested so that an amendment to the 
claim could be agreed. Our additional testing identified 8 further cases (value £32,662) where student 
loan income was calculated incorrectly. In all cases this resulted in an underpayment of benefit. As there 
is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit which has not been paid, the underpayment does not affect subsidy 
and has not, therefore, been classified as an error for subsidy purposes and no amendments to the 
claim have been posted. This issue will be reviewed as part of our CAKE work on the 2021/22 claim.  
 
 
Appendix C: Amendments to the claim form MPF720A 

Cell 094 Overpayment of benefit – Incorrect working tax credit income 
Cell 094 Rent Allowances  
Cell Total: £ 14,118,943 
Cell Population: 3,032 cases 
Cell Population: 290 cases – Sub population 
 

As a result of our CAKE findings from 2019/20 additional testing was performed in relation to the 
accuracy of working tax credit income used in the benefit calculation. There were no issued identified in 
regard to this from any of our initial testing performed. All cases in this sub-population were tested so 
that an amendment to the claim could be agreed. 

Our additional testing identified one case (value £ 5,180) where the figure used for working tax credit in 
the benefit calculated was incorrect. As such, cell 102 is overstated by £12 and cell 113 is 
correspondingly understated by £12.  

This has been reflected in the amendment made to Form MPF720a dated 28 February 2022. 

 
Appendix D Additional Issues 
 

No matters to report. 

Page 97



 

Commercial in confidence Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Chair of the Audit Committee's Annual Report 
2021/22 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Stephen Coleman – Chair of Audit Committee 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: n/a 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Good governance arrangements link to the Council’s 
achievements of its Council Plan priorities and objectives.  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 This report is presented to summarise the activities of the Audit Committee during the 
2021/22 Council year. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1)  consider the draft report: and 

(2 authorise the Chairman to submit it, with any agreed amendments, to 
Council. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require the Committee to report 
annually to Council on its work for the year. As well as informing Councillors 
generally, the report helps to demonstrate the continuing effectiveness of the 
Committee. 

3.2 The attached report describes the Committee’s work during 2021/22, grouped under 
functional headings. For completeness, agenda items for this meeting are included in 
the report on the assumption that they will be accepted: if necessary, changes will be 
made to reflect any different outcome.  The Council year has been chosen for report 
purposes although this means that some cases do not fit the normal reporting cycle.  

3.3 For 2021/22 the following members served on Audit Committee:  

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) Tracey Coward (Vice Chairman) 

Giles Archibald Kevin Holmes 

Pete Endsor Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn  

 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Page 99

Item No.10



Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Assessment of Compliance with Role of Head of Internal Audit 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The draft annual report will be considered by Audit Committee.  

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The Committee’s terms of reference require the Chairman to produce this report; its 
contents are subject to consideration by Members.  

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 This report has no direct financial implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 This report has no direct human resources implications 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No   

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

Page 100



 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 x N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 x N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

No discernible risks in the 
production of the report 

  

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151), South Lakeland District Council, 01539 
793333, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None 
 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer N/A N/A 

Monitoring Officer N/A N/A 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Page 101



Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 21/04/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 102



Appendix 1 
 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 
 

Chairman’s Foreword 
 
The Committee’s role is to provide the Council and the public with independent assurance 
that it is operating securely and effectively within a sound governance framework.  The 
Committee’s brief covers risk management, performance management, governance and 
constitutional arrangements as well as traditional finance activities.  The role is to oversee 
the management of those processes to ensure that robust procedures are in place without 
being involved in the detailed operation. 

Audit Committee Members take their role seriously and are committed to their work.  We set 
out a full annual work programme that is monitored at each meeting and revised as 
necessary.  We have been trained on a range of relevant subjects and understand the 
nature of local government audit.  

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  From May 
2012 the responsibility for the functions of the Accounts Committee transferred to the Audit 
Committee. 

The Committee’s terms of reference allow it to meet privately with External and Internal Audit 
(without council officers); earlier this year the meeting took place with these two 
organisations to discuss topical issues.   

The Committee has good working relationships with the respective Audit Managers.  All of 
their reports are presented to the Committee which pursues identified weaknesses in control 
systems to make sure that they are corrected.  In the Committees experience, council 
officers are receptive to the necessary changes and seek improvements wherever possible. 

I am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Committee.  It confirms the progress that 
we have made and that we continue to be an effective independent element of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  We know that Local Government doesn’t stand still and the 
Committee will continue to develop so that it is always able to anticipate and deal with new 
aspects of finance and governance. 

 
 
Councillor Stephen Coleman 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
April 2022

Page 103



Purpose of the Report 

This report summarises the work carried out by the Audit Committee during the year.  It 
demonstrates to Council and stakeholders the effectiveness of the Committee in assessing 
and maintaining the organisation’s internal control environment and governance 
arrangements.  

Background 

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  As a result of 
the changes introduced by the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 which no longer 
required member approval of the draft Statement of Accounts, the Accounts Committee was 
discontinued with effect from the Annual General Meeting of Council in May 2012 and from 
that date the responsibility for the remaining functions of the Accounts Committee 
transferred to the Audit Committee 

The Terms of Reference for the Committee have been modelled on CIPFAi guidance and 
hence represent best practice.  A fully functioning Audit Committee needs to provide 
effective challenge across the Council’s activities together with independent assurance on 
the risk management framework and associated internal control environment to Members 
and the public and to demonstrate the impact of its work.  The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed annually with no substantive changes required in 2021/22. 

This Annual Report of the Committee covers the period from May 2021 to April 2022.  This 
reporting timescale matches both the Council year and the external auditing cycle.   The 
Committee structures and plans its work around four main functional areas: external audit, 
internal audit, accounts and regulatory framework.  This report follows the same format in its 
summary of the year’s activities. 

The Committee 

Following the expansion of the duties of the Audit Committee to include the functions of the 
Accounts Committee the Committee has increased in size from five Councillors to seven. 
During 2020/21 it was then reduced down to six Councillors.  All Councillors are independent 
of the Council’s Cabinet and the Committee membership is politically balanced.  Councillor 
Stephen Coleman has served as Chairman since May 2008.  The Committee met on four 
occasions this year.   

The External and Internal Auditors, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are invited 
to all Committee meetings.  In addition its Members meet periodically with both Audit 
Managers to discuss topical issues without officers being present.  The Committee has the 
ability to seek attendance from any officer or Member of the Council and has exercised this 
right on several occasions. 

Training is an essential element for an Audit Committee.  The Committee receive annual 
training, have been updated on statutory accounting requirements and are alert to the 
possibility of areas in which their knowledge could be extended. 

The Committee has developed a structured work programme which maps out its activities on 
an annual basis.  This programme is supplemented by new requirements as they are 
identified.  Progress against the programme is monitored at each Committee meeting.  

External Audit 

The Government changed the arrangements for the delivery of external audit for local 
government following the announcement of the abolition of the Audit Commission.  The 
external audit contract for the North West was awarded to Grant Thornton from September 
2012 for five years and re-awarded following a tender exercise in 2017 for a further five 
years.  The Council has opted into the ‘appointing person’ national auditor appointments 

Page 104



process for the appointment of auditors covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28 even though 
it is expected that the Westmorland and Furness Council will exist from 1 April 2023 and will 
need to appoint their own external auditors. 

The Audit Committee receives and approves the external auditor’s Annual Audit Plan.  It 
comments on the fee rates and work programme consultation carried out by Grant Thornton 
based on fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, the independent company set 
up by the Local Government Association with delegated statutory functions to set audit fees 
and make arrangements for certain audits.  Audit Committee receives the Annual Findings 
Report and the annual Grant Certification Report and monitors actions against the 
recommendations within these reports.  A Use of Resources judgement is included in the 
Annual Governance Report indicating whether the Council has adequate arrangements to 
secure Value for Money in the use of resources.   

The Annual Audit Letter summarised the auditor’s work for the year and opinion on the 
Council’s financial statements and value for money arrangements, as summarised later in 
this report. An unqualified audit opinion was issued on 30 September 2021 on the Council’s 
financial statements for 2020/21.  More details can be found in the Audit Findings Report 
which was published and reported to the Audit Committee on 23 September 2021.  

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice the auditors are also required 
to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The auditor is no longer required to give 
a binary qualified / unqualified Value For Money (VFM) conclusion.  Instead, auditors report 
in more detail on the Council’s overall arrangements, as well as key recommendations on 
any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit. Auditors are required 
to report their commentary on the Council’s arrangements under three specified criterial:  

 Financial Sustainability 

 Governance 

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In all three areas there were no risks of significant weakness identified and no significant 
weaknesses in arrangements identified but improvement recommendations were made.   

To support the audit of the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) the auditors are required 
to review and report on the WGA return prepared by the Council.  As the return, guidance 
and tools have not yet been issued by the Government the auditors have been unable to 
complete their work in this area. 

From the 2021/22 accounts it is expected that the External Audit opinion on the Council’s 
accounts will be reported to a meeting of Full Council.  

The External Auditor has statutory powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014, including public interest reports: they have not exercised any of these additional 
statutory powers or duties for 2020/2120 or 2021/22 to date. 

Internal Audit  

The Committee oversees the work of Internal Audit. The internal audit service has been 
provided by TIAA Ltd since April 2016.  The internal auditor’s terms of reference are formally 
reviewed each year to ensure they continue to meet professional standards and good 
practice. 

At the beginning of the year the Committee approves the internal audit plan which sets out 
the individual audits to be carried out: coverage of the Council’s activities is informed by a 
risk-based audit needs assessment.  This process, introduced from April 2015, now 
focusses internal audit resources at areas of known or perceived risk within the Council, 
thereby increasing the possibility of lower levels of assurance.  

Page 105



Performance against the plan is monitored by formal progress reports to each Committee 
meeting, supplemented as necessary by verbal updates from the Internal Audit Manager.  
The Committee closely monitors the implementation of recommendations made by both 
External and Internal Audit. 

All individual audit reports are presented to the Committee.  During the year, 13 reports have 
been considered which recorded the following assurance levels:ii 

 
Assurance Level 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 

Substantial 4 2 2 2 3 0 

Reasonable 9 9 8 10 8 9 

Limited 0 0 1 0 1 3 

None  0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 13 11 11 12 12 12 

The Committee concentrates its attention on high priority recommendationsiii made in 
reports.  Where a report carries limited or no assurance, the Committee has adopted the 
practice of requiring the relevant Lead Officer to attend its next meeting where appropriate to 
demonstrate that progress is being made in implementing its recommendations.  If 
necessary, Members have requested subsequent update reports.   

The Internal Audit Manager will present his Annual Report for 2021/22 to the Committee in 
July 2022.  This will summarise the results of his work during the year and contains his 
opinion of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 
environment.  As the fieldwork for 2021/22 has been largely completed and the outcome of 
most of the reviews are known, the opinion will conclude that, for the areas reviewed during 
the year, there is reasonable assurance that effective risk management, control and 
governance processes are in place at the Council to manage the achievement of its 
objectives.  In the Internal Audit Manager’s experience, this profile of assurance is 
comparable with other local authorities.   

In April 2022 the Committee considered a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit by reference to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and associated 
Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  This showed that TIAA Ltd fully complied with 
the relevant standards and concluded it was operating effectively. 

The Council’s Internal Auditors operate within a broad framework set by the contract 
between the two organisations. It is a requirement of the mandatory Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards that the Council has an audit charter in place, which has been approved by 
senior management and the Audit Committee.  Key elements of the Charter are: 

 Reference to the mandatory nature of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The functional reporting line of internal audit to the Audit Committee to maintain audit 
independence. 

 The requirement for internal audit to provide an annual opinion on the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control. 

 Internal Audit’s right of access to all activities, premises, records, personnel, cash 
and stores as required to undertake agreed internal audit assignments. 

 The responsibility of the Head of Internal Audit to prepare an annual risk based audit 
plan for approval by senior management and the Audit Committee. 

 Certain specific responsibilities of the Head of Internal Audit  
 

Page 106



Accounts  

Each year CIPFA updates the accounting requirements for statutory accounts by issuing a 
revised Code of Practice.  The Committee is informed of these changes by means of an 
informal training session and approves the resulting amendments to the Council’s 
Accounting Policies.  In April 2020 the Committee noted a draft set of Accounting Policies 
that would be applicable for the preparation of the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts.   

Changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations no longer require Member approval of the 
draft Statement of Accounts prior to its submission for audit.  Instead the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer, the Finance Lead Specialist approved the draft Statement in June 2021, 
within the revised statutory deadline of 31 July 2021.   

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has a major impact on the Council’s 
accounts with significant new disclosures and higher than normal values.  Auditing was also 
done remotely.   

In September 2021 the Audit Committee received the Audit Findings Report from Grant 
Thornton, incorporating their draft opinion on the 2020/21 accounts, and approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts.  The auditors reported their intention to provide an 
unqualified opinion on the financial statements.     

Adjustment to the primary financial statements were made reflecting amendments to the 
treatment of Covid-19 grants, particularly relating to agency payments, the amended value of 
a government grant announced after the draft accounts were complete, and a revising to the 
treatment of deferred capital receipts.  Amendments were also made relating to a re-run of 
the actuary’s report that amended the fair value of pension plan assets and corresponding 
amendments to the net pension liability. Recommendations were raised for management as 
a result of the External Audit work in, which have all been accepted by management and 
implemented.   

The Council is normally required to produce the draft Statement and have that externally 
audited by 31 May and 31 July respectively.  As a result of Covid-19 the deadlines for 
2020/21 and 2021/22 have been revised to 30 July and 30 November respectively.   

Regulatory Framework 

Corporate Governance  

Following drafting work by the Audit Committee using a framework produced by CIPFA and 
SOLACEiv, Council approved a Local Code of Governance in May 2008.  The Committee 
reviews this Code annually.  CIPFA published a revised version of their governance 
framework in 2016 which applied from 1 April 2016.  Audit Committee considered and 
approved a re-written Local Code of Governance in December 2016 and further minor 
changes considered by Audit Committee in April 2021 were approval by Council in May 
2021. No further amendments were identified in the review in December 2021. 

The Council is required to formally review its governance arrangements annually and the 
Committee carries out this work on its behalf.  This is achieved by the production of an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is a far-reaching review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s governance, including departmental assurance statements and Internal Audit’s 
annual opinion report. 

The final Statement provides a thorough review of governance arrangements.  Audit 
Committee members will revisit the subject when they review the 2021/22 AGS alongside 
the Statement of Accounts in July 2021. 

The Audit Committee normally conducts an annual review of the Constitution.  During 
2015/16 substantial changes were made to improve the financial management and contract 
management processes of the Council including changes to reflect statutory changes in the 

Page 107



Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with only minor changes since.  Minor changes were 
proposed in December 2021.   

Fraud Prevention and Whistleblowing 

The promotion of fraud awareness is important to Audit Committee Members who encourage 
officers in their efforts; as a visible demonstration of this commitment, the Committee has 
introduced an annual report of anti-fraud activity, the first being presented in 2009.  
Following the transfer of much of the benefit-related anti-fraud activity to the DWP the 
Council retained one member of the counter-fraud team as a Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer.  
Following the Customer Connect staff review, the Fraud Specialist is now part-time and part 
of the Operational Specialist team alongside the revenues and benefits specialist.  The 
Fraud Specialist has also been involved in raising the profile of anti-fraud and corruption in 
the authority. This has included attending team meetings, briefing managers and reviewing 
policies and practices.  Inevitably much of the time for 2020/21 have been involved in Covid-
19 related grant work due to the number and value of payments.   

Risk Management  

The Committee receives annual progress reports on the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  The Committee maintains a risk register relating to its own activities and 
reviews this periodically.  The experience gained from the years of the Committee’s 
existence has enabled it to manage its risks effectively within its agreed risk appetite.   

Performance Management  

The Committee receives an annual progress report on the Council’s performance 
management arrangements.  The Committee received the annual review of the Performance 
Management Framework in April 2022. The framework describes how the Council monitors 
its performance and is intended to support the Council in developing and embedding a high 
performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the people of South 
Lakeland. 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

Officers from the Council used a checklist to test the effectiveness of the Committee 
produced by CIPFA as part of its Practical Guidance for Local Authority and Police Audit 
Committees in 2018.  The conclusion was that the Committee has been established in 
accordance with best practice and is operating effectively in all material respects. Minor 
weaknesses identified in past reviews have been recognised and addressed, including the 
introduction of separate meetings with the Internal and External Audit Managers; however 
Members need to be continually aware of areas in which they should be challenging the 
performance of the Cabinet and Council generally. 

Customer Connect 

Audit Committee received regular reports on the progress of the Customer Connect 
programme, mainly focussing on the Risk, Issue and Dependency Logs, the Change and 
Product Logs.   

Conclusions 

This Annual Report has summarised the work of the Committee over the last twelve months, 
indicating that it is functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements.  Committee Members believe that it is 
carrying out this role effectively, an opinion supported by the officer review. 

The Committee will continue to develop its role and impact through ongoing Member training 
and refinement of its work programme in order to meet future challenges.  

 

 

Page 108



 

                                           
i The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which sets standards for local 
government accounting and audit. 
 
 
ii Internal Audit terminology for assurance levels given to individual audits by Internal Audit are: 

Substantial: There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the system 
objectives and this minimises risk. 

Reasonable: There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which should ensure 
that system objectives are generally achieved, but some issues have been 
raised which may result in a degree of risk exposure beyond that which is 
considered acceptable. 

Limited: The system of internal control designed to achieve the system objectives is 
not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there are an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses which have been identified and the level of non-
compliance and / or weaknesses in the system of internal control puts the 
system objectives at risk.  This was previously known as partial assurance. 

 
None:  Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of internal 

control resulting in the control environment being unacceptably weak and 
expose the system objectives to a high degree of risk.  This was previously 
known as limited assurance 

 
iii Internal Audit report recommendations are prioritised as: 

1 Urgent Fundamental control issue on which action should be 
taken immediately 

2 
Important Control issue on which action should be taken at the 

earliest opportunity. 

3 Routine Control issue on which action should be taken. 

 
Recommendations are also made to improve operational effectiveness. 
 

iv The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers. 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Review of Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: n/a 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Good governance arrangements link to the Council’s 
achievements of its Council Plan priorities and objectives.  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 This report is presented to show the results of the annual review of the Committee’s 
effectiveness, carried out using principles established by CIPFA, the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.  The review uses a questionnaire 
approach: its conclusion is that the Committee continues to operate effectively. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) considers and approves the review and its conclusion that the 
Committee is operating effectively in all material respects; and 

(2) notes the skills framework for members of Audit Committee in 
Appendix 3. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Committee’s work programme requires it to review its own effectiveness on an 
annual basis.  Unlike the review of internal audit, this is not a statutory requirement 
but an element of best practice.  The review will provide assurance for the Annual 
Governance Statement.   

3.2 The Committee’s latest annual report, prepared in April 2022 for the 2021/22 
elsewhere on this agenda, is a useful starting point for the review but it tends to be 
descriptive rather than analytical and a different approach is required to test 
effectiveness.  CIPFA published updated Practical Guidance for Local Authority and 
Police Audit Committees in 2018 which includes a checklist to assess the 
effectiveness of Audit Committees, which is included at Appendix 1 and an 
evaluation tool included at Appendix 2 along with responses prepared by officers.   

3.3 The Guidance includes the suggestion that a lay or independent member should be 
included in Audit Committees although this is not a requirement.  However, the Audit 
Committee operates with a high level of challenge to officers.  Members considered 
whether it is appropriate for an independent member to be sought at the meeting of 

Page 111

Item No.11



Audit Committee in December 2018 and concluded there was no need for an 
independent member. 

3.5 The review concludes that, with the exception of the inclusion of an independent 
member, the Committee can demonstrate that it has been established in accordance 
with best practice and that, while operating without an independent member, it has 
operated effectively during the last year.   

3.6 The Committee should be alert to any changes in its membership and the expertise 
of its Members so that it can arrange suitable training.  Appendix 3 includes a skills 
framework for members of Audit Committee also produced by CIPFA. 

3.7 The Practical Guidance includes possible wider functions of an audit committee.  The 
questionnaire in Appendix 1 includes a question of whether these possible wider 
functions have been considered by Audit Committee. 

 These functions are: 

a) Considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other committees 
or statutory officers; 

b) Working with local standards committees to support ethical values and reviewing 
the arrangements to support those values; 

c) Reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance with 
the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. 

Audit Committee does support some work of the Standards Committee to support 
ethical values, particularly around reviewing whistleblowing arrangements.  For this 
Council the treasury management scrutiny function is carried out by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  The terms of reference do not refer to requests for consideration 
of matters from other committees or statutory officers: any such proposals should be 
considered on a case-by-case basis bearing in mind the need to maintain the 
independence of the Audit Committee. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Audit Committee Effectiveness Checklist March 2022 

2 Audit Committee Effectiveness Assessment March 2022 

3 CIPFA Audit Committee Members Knowledge and Skills Framework 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Officers have reviewed the guidance on the operation of audit committees as set out 
above. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The Committee can challenge and alter the detail or the conclusion of the review, 
however it is believed that the assessment is accurate and can be evidenced. 

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 This report has no direct financial implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 Need for continued focus on Skills/Knowledge development and effectiveness of 
members.  Also need to further raise awareness of role of Audit and effectiveness of 
audit as part of the key skills programme for senior managers. 

Page 112



Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No   

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Page 113



Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 x N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 x N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

The review is not carried out to 
appropriate standards. 

Failure to recognise any 
weaknesses in the 
Committee’s performance 
and potential adverse 
effect on the Use of 
Resources assessment. 

A thorough review and 
assessment based on 
CIPFA guidance. 

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151), South Lakeland District Council, 01539 
793333, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None 
 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer N/A N/A 

Monitoring Officer N/A N/A 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 21/04/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 114



Appendix 1 

ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

March 2022 

  ISSUE YES NO N/A Comment 

A Terms of Reference  

1 
Does the authority have a dedicated 
audit committee? 

       

2 
Does the audit committee report 
directly to full Council? 

     
Annual review to Annual Council, 
May 

3 

Do the terms of reference clearly set 
out the purpose of the Committee in 
accordance with CIPFA’s position 
statement? 

       

4 
Is the role and purpose of the audit 
committee understood and accepted 
across the authority? 

     Reported annually to full Council  

5 
Does the audit committee provide 
support to the authority in meeting the 
requirements of good governance? 

       

6 
Are the arrangements to hold the 
committee to account for its 
performance working satisfactorily? 

     
This assessment,  Annual report 
to Council 

B Functions of the Committee 

7 

Do the Committee’s terms of 
reference explicitly address all the 
core areas identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement? 

        

  i.        good governance        

  
ii.        assurance framework including 
partnerships and collaboration 

       

  iii.        internal audit        

  iv.        external audit        

  v.        financial reporting        

  vi.        risk management        

  vii.        value for money or best value        

 viii.        counter fraud and corruption     

  ix.       supporting the ethical framework      
Considered as part of review of 
Local Code of Governance 

8 

Is an annual evaluation undertaken to 
assess whether the committee is 
fulfilling its terms of reference and that 
adequate consideration has been 
given to all core areas? 

     This report 

  

Page 115



Appendix 1 

9 

Has the audit committee considered 
the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s 
position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the 
committee to undertake them? 

     

    Considering governance, risk 
or control matters at the request 
of other committees or statutory 
officers

  Working with local standards 
committees to support ethical 
values and reviewing the 
arrangements to achieve those 
values

  Reviewing and monitoring 
treasury management 
arrangements in accordance with 
the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice: in SLDC this is 
carried out by Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

10 

Where coverage of core areas has 
been found to be limited, are plans in 
place to address this? 

       

11 

Has the committee maintained its 
non-advisory role by not taking on any 
decision-making powers that are not 
in line with its core purpose? 

      

C Membership and support 

12 

Has an effective audit committee 
structure and composition of the 
committee been selected? This 
should include: 

        

  

i.        separation from the executive 

     

Members of the committee also sit 
on Shadow Cabinet, Lake 
Administration Committee, 
Planning Committee, Standards 
Committee, Human Resources 
Committees, Appeals Sub 
Committee and Licensing 
Committees.  
Officers would give the relevant 
members advice if they believed 
there was conflict of interest 
regarding any audit or other 
review of other committee issues. 

  

ii.        an appropriate mix of knowledge 
and skills among the membership        

  
iii.        size of committee that is not 
unwieldy 

       

  

iv.        consideration has been given to 
the inclusion of at least one 
independent member     

All members of Audit Committee 
are elected members of SLDC; 
consideration was given in 
December 2018 to the inclusion of 
independent member(s). 

13 

Have independent members 
appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent 
way and approved by full Council? 

   No independent members 

14 
Does the chair of the committee have 
appropriate knowledge and skills?        

Page 116



Appendix 1 

15 
Are arrangements in place to support 
the committee with briefings and 
training? 

       

16 

Has the membership of the committee 
been assessed against the core 
knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory? 

     
Core knowledge framework 
attached at Appendix 3. 

17 

Does the committee have good 
working relations with key people and 
organisations, including external 
audit, internal audit and the chief 
finance officer? 

       

18 
Is adequate secretariat and 
administrative support to the 
committee provided? 

       

D Meetings 

19 

Has the committee obtained feedback 
on its performance from those 
interacting with the committee or 
relying on its work? 

   
Annual meeting with external 
audit, annual report to Council 

20 
Are meetings effective with a good 
level of discussion and engagement 
from all the members 

    

21 

Does the committee engage with a 
wide range of leaders and managers, 
including discussion of audit findings, 
risks and action plans with the 
responsible officers? 

   

Managers appear at Audit 
Committee for relevant internal 
and external audit reports. 
Additional reports provided since 
2018/19 on Customer Connect at 
request of Audit Committee 

22 

Does the Committee make 
recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and 
control and are these acted on? 

   

Yes: recommendation 
implementation monitoring usually 
reported to every meeting of Audit 
Committee 

23 
Has the Committee evaluated 
whether and how it is adding value to 
the organisation? 

   
This review, annual report to 
Council 

24 

Does the Committee have an action 
plan to improve any areas of 
weakness?    

part of AGS review and action 
plan, issues arising from this 
review 
Audit Risk Register: mitigations 
required 

25 
Does the Committee publish an 
annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work? 

   Annual Report to Council 

 

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Appendix 2 

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: EVALUATION REVIEW 

March 2022 

Part 2 

Assessment Key 

5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting improvements across all 

aspects of this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable. 

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some 

aspects of this area. 

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that 

demonstrates their impact but there are also significant gaps. 

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited. 

1 No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area. 

 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

Promoting the principles of good 

governance and their application to 

decision making 

Supporting the development of a local 

code of governance 

Local Code of Governance reviewed 

and updated annually: 2021/22 review 

reported to Audit Committee December 

2021 

5 

P
age 119



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above  
Providing robust review of the AGS and 

the assurances underpinning it 

Audit Committee have reviewed AGS 

through Audit Panel in previous years – 

latterly there have been few issues and 

Audit Panel has not felt to be necessary 

5 

 
Working with key members to improve 

their understanding of the AGS and their 

contribution to it 

Overview of AGS and process included 

in Audit Committee Annual Report. 

5 

 
Supporting reviews/audits of governance 

arrangements 

Audit Committee participate in reviews 

of Local Code of Governance, 

Constitution, receipt of internal and 

external audit reviews, risk 

management arrangements, 

performance management 

arrangements 

5 

 
Participating in self-assessments of 

governance arrangements 

Self-assessments carried out on 

effectiveness of audit committee and 

internal audit: review if similar self-

assessments available for other areas 

e.g. risk 

4 

 
Working with partner audit committees to 

review governance arrangements in 

partnerships 

N/A to date but will review in the light of 

Local Government Reorganisation 

N/A  

P
age 120



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

Contributing to the development of 

an effective control environment 

Actively monitoring the implementation of 

recommendations from auditors 

All audit recommendations reported to 

committee and reviewed regularly: 

where recommendations not 

implemented senior managers are 

invited to Audit Committee to explain 

reasons why 

5 

 
Encouraging ownership of the internal 

control framework by appropriate 

managers 

All internal audit reports are brought to 

Audit Committee, where significant 

issues are identified then senior 

managers are invited to Audit 

Committee.  Chief Executive, Directors, 

Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 

Officer attend Audit Committee 

regularly and understand Committee’s 

commitment to internal controls 

5 

 
Raising significant concerns over controls 

with appropriate senior managers 

All internal audit reports are brought to 

Audit Committee, where significant 

issues are identified then senior 

managers are invited to Audit 

Committee.  Chief Executive, Directors, 

Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 

Officer attend Audit Committee 

regularly and understand Committee’s 

commitment to internal controls 

5 

P
age 121



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

Supporting the establishment of 

arrangements for the governance of 

risk and for effective arrangements 

to manage risks 

Reviewing risk management 

arrangements and their effectiveness, e.g. 

risk management benchmarking 

Risk management arrangements are 

reviewed annually, corporate risks and 

Audit Committee risks are reviewed 

twice per year by Audit Committee, 

internal audit of risk management on 

programme of regular significant audits.  

No benchmarking 

4 

 
Monitoring improvements Corporate risks are monitored twice per 

year: senior managers required to 

explain where improvements have not 

occurred 

5 

 
Holding risk owners to account for 

major/strategic risks 

Corporate risks are monitored twice per 

year: senior managers required to 

explain significant risks.  Additional 

reports may be requested e.g. 

Customer Connect implementation 

5 

Advising on the adequacy of the 

assurance framework and 

considering whether assurance is 

deployed efficiently and effectively 

Specifying its assurance needs, identifying 

gaps or overlaps in assurance 

Annual review of internal audit plan, 

overview of external audit plan 

4 

 
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering 

and reporting 

Annual review of internal audit plan, 

overview of external audit plan 

4 

P
age 122



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above  
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance 

providers, e.g. internal audit, risk 

management, external audit 

Annual review of effectiveness of 

internal audit and of risk management 

arrangements.  Receipt of external 

audit updates: contract review of 

external audit carried out by PSAA Ltd 

nationally, review of external audit 

practices carried out by National Audit 

Office nationally: opportunity for Audit 

Committee to contribute to these 

reviews  

5 

Supporting the quality of the internal 

audit activity, particularly by 

underpinning its organisational 

independence 

Reviewing the audit charter and functional 

reporting arrangements 

Annual approval of audit plan and 

charter, internal audit monitoring 

against plan to all Audit Committee 

meetings 

5 

 
Assessing the effectiveness of internal 

audit arrangements, providing constructive 

challenge and supporting improvements 

Annual review of effectiveness of 

internal audit against best-practice 

checklist. 

5 

 
Actively supporting the quality assurance 

and improvement programme of internal 

audit 

Annual review of effectiveness of 

internal audit against best-practice 

checklist. 

5 

P
age 123



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

Aiding the achievement of the 

authority’s goals and objectives 

through helping to ensure 

appropriate governance, risk, control 

and assurance  arrangements 

Reviewing how the governance 

arrangements support the achievement of 

sustainable outcomes 

Through review of Local Code of 

Governance and AGS process 

4 

 Reviewing major projects and 

programmes to ensure that governance 

and assurance arrangements are in place 

Major projects will be incorporated into 

corporate risk process, where relevant 

Audit Committee will request additional 

reports e.g. Customer Connect 

5 

 Reviewing the effectiveness of 

performance management arrangements 

Annual review of performance 

management process, regular internal 

audit reports 

5 

Supporting the development of 

robust arrangements for ensuring 

value for money 

Ensuring that assurance on value for 

money arrangements is included in the 

assurances received by the audit 

committee 

Explicit part of external audit report; 

included in internal audit reviews. 

Annual review of CIPFA FM Code 

(including vfm requirements) taken to 

Audit Committee 

5 

P
age 124



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

 Considering how performance in value for 

money is evaluated as part of the AGS 

Medium Term Financial Plan, budgeting 

and monitoring process identifies areas 

where overspend may indicate issues 

with value for money: AGS process 

includes more explicit review as part of 

annual review of CIPFA FM Code 

4 

Helping the authority to implement 

the values of good governance, 

including effective arrangements for 

countering fraud and corruption risks 

Reviewing arrangements against the 

standards set out in the Code of Practice 

on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption (CIPFA, 2014) 

Annual review of fraud arrangements to 

Audit Committee, processes under 

constant review by managers 

5 

 Reviewing fraud risks and the 

effectiveness of the organisation’s strategy 

to address those risks 

Annual review of fraud arrangements, 

review of fraud risk undertake by 

officers where significant changes in 

processes or new projects are 

undertaken 

5 

 Assessing the effectiveness of ethical 

governance arrangements for staff 

Nolan principles included in training for 

all staff during 2021/22 and Vision and 

Values workshops being carried out 

during first 6 months of 2022. 

5 

P
age 125



Appendix 2 

Areas where the audit committee 

can add value by supporting 

improvement 

Examples of how the audit committee 

can add value and provide evidence of 

effectiveness 

Self-evaluation, examples, areas of 

strength and weakness 

Overall 

assessment:  

5 – 1  

See key above 

Promoting effective public report to 

the authority's stakeholders and 

local community and measures to 

improve transparency and 

accountability 

Improving how the authority discharges its 

responsibilities for public reporting; for 

example, better targeting at the audience, 

plain English 

Annual Report produced in user-friendly 

format.  Statement of Accounts 

reviewed to try to make clearer 

following “Telling the Story” guidance. 

From 2021/22 accounts there will be a 

new requirement to produce Summary 

Statements (as recommended by 

Redmond Review): staff will monitor 

requirements and will draft Summary 

Statements for 2020/21 accounts 

accordingly. 

4 

 
Reviewing whether decision making 

through partnership organisations remains 

transparent and publicly accessible and 

encourages greater transparency 

Part of review of Local Code of 

Governance through AGS process: not 

explicit.  External Audit VFM considers 

how organisation takes properly 

informed decisions.  Internal review to 

be more explicit 

4 

 
Publishing an annual report from the 

committee 

Annual Report from Audit Committee 

reported to Annual Council each May, 

published on website as part of 

Committee papers 

5 

 

P
age 126



APPENDIX 3 

 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE  

CIPFA AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK 

Details of core knowledge required 
How the audit committee member is able to 

apply the knowledge 

Organisational knowledge 

 An overview of the governance structures 
of the authority and decision making 
processes 

 Knowledge of the organisational objectives 
and major functions of the authority  

This knowledge will be core to most activities of 
the audit committee including review of the Annual 
Governance Statement, internal and external 
audit reports and risk registers 

Audit Committee role and functions 

 An understanding of the committee’s role 
and place within the governance structures.  
Familiarity with the committee’s terms of 
reference and accountability arrangements. 

 Knowledge of the purpose and role of the 
audit committee 

This knowledge will enable the audit committee to 
prioritise its work in order to ensure it discharges 
its responsibilities under its terms of reference and 
to avoid overlapping the work of others  

Governance 

 Knowledge of the principles of the 
CIPFA/Solace Good Governance 
framework and the requirements of the 
Annual Governance Statement 

 Knowledge of the local code of governance 

The committee will review the local code of 
governance and consider how governance 
arrangements align to the principles in the 
framework 
The committee will plan the assurances it is to 
receive in order to adequately support the AGS. 
The committee will review the AGS and consider 
how the authority is meeting the principles of good 
governance 

Internal Audit 

 An awareness of the key principles of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
the Local Government Application Note 

 Knowledge of the arrangements for delivery 
of the internal audit service in the authority 
and how the role of the head of internal 
audit is fulfilled 

The audit committee has oversight of the internal 
audit function and will monitor its adherence to 
professional internal audit standards 
The audit committee will review the assurances 
from internal audit work and will review the risk-
based audit plan.  The committee will also receive 
the annual report, including an opinion and 
information on conformance with professional 
standards. 
In relying on the work of internal audit, the 
committee will need to be confident that 
professional standards are being followed. 
The audit committee chair is likely to be 
interviewed as part of the external quality 
assessment and the committee will receive the 
outcome of the assessment and action plan. 

Financial Management and Accounting 

 Awareness of the financial standards that a 
local authority must produce and the 
principles it must follow to produce them. 

 Understanding of food financial 
management principles 

Reviewing the financial statement prior to 
publication, asking questions. 
Receiving the external audit report and opinion on 
the financial audit. 

Page 127



APPENDIX 3 

 

 Knowledge of how the organisation meets 
the requirements of the role of the chief 
financial officer, as required by the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer in Local Government 

Reviewing both external and internal audit 
recommendations relating to financial 
management and controls 
The audit committee should consider the role of 
the CFO and how this is met when reviewing the 
AGS 

External Audit 

 Knowledge of the role and functions of the 
external auditor and who currently 
undertakes this role. 

 Knowledge of the key reports and 
assurances that external audit will provide 

 Knowledge about arrangements for the 
appointment of auditors and quality 
monitoring undertaken 

The audit committee should meet with the 
external auditor regularly and receive their reports 
and opinions. 
Monitoring external audit recommendations and 
maximising benefit from audit process. 
The audit committee should monitor the 
relationship between the external auditor and the 
authority and support the delivery of an effective 
service. 

Risk Management 

 Understanding of the principles of risk 
management, including linkage to good 
governance and decision making. 

 Knowledge of the risk management policy 
and strategy of the organisation. 

 Understanding of risk governance 
arrangements, including the role of 
members and of the audit committee 

In reviewing the AGS, the committee will consider 
the robustness of the authority’s risk management 
arrangements and should also have awareness of 
the major risks the authority faces. 
Keeping up to date with the risk profile is 
necessary to support the review of a number of 
audit committee agenda items, including the risk-
based internal audit plan, external audit plans, 
and the explanatory foreword of the accounts.  
Typically risk registers will be used to inform the 
committee. 
The committee should also review reports and 
action plans to develop the application of risk 
management practice. 

Counter-fraud 

 An understanding of the main areas of 
fraud risk the organisation is exposed to. 

 Knowledge of the principles of good fraud 
risk management practice in accordance 
with the Code of Practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 

 Knowledge of the organisation’s 
arrangements for tacking fraud 

Knowledge of fraud risks and good fraud risk 
management practice will be helpful when the 
committee reviews the organisation’s fraud 
strategy and receives the reports on the 
effectiveness of that strategy. 
An assessment of arrangements should support 
the AGS and knowledge of good fraud risk 
management practice will support the audit 
committee member in reviewing that assessment. 

Values of good governance 

 Knowledge of the Seven Principles of 
Public Life 

 Knowledge of the authority’s key 
arrangements to uphold ethical standards 
for both members and staff 

 Knowledge of the whistleblowing 
arrangements in the authority. 

The audit committee member will draw on this 
knowledge when reviewing governance issues 
and the AGS. 
Oversight of the effectiveness of whistleblowing 
will be considered as part of the AGS.  The audit 
committee member should know to whom 
concerns should be reported. 

     

Page 128



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21st April 2022 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22  
 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Regional Managing Director, 
TIAA Limited) 

Wards: Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the progress in delivering the Internal Audit Annual 
Plan in 2021/22. It provides the Committee with assurance through the individual 
internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

 The progress achieved in 2021/22 in completing the Audit Plan and the outcomes 
of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1. 

 The attached audit reports at Appendix 2. 

 Summary progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous 
internal audit reviews set out in Appendix 3. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 
Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the system of internal 
control and should set in place policies and procedures to ensure that controls are 
operating effectively. 

4.0 Progress against the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 

Page 129

Item No.12



4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2021.  

4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of the 
position as at April 2022. 

4.3 As we enter a new financial year, 13 out of 14 reviews have been completed, 12 of 
which have been finalised and one of which is at the draft report stage. Fieldwork on 
the one remaining audit in 2021/22 has commenced. These reports will be presented 
to the July 2022 Audit Committee meeting.  

5.0 Audit reports completed in the period 

5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the five audits completed in the 
period: 

 Budgetary Control; 

 COVID-19 Grant Schemes; 

 Flood Relief Scheme;  

 Housing Benefits; and 

 Licensing – Taxis.   

6.0 Follow up of internal audit recommendations 

6.1 The latest summary position relating to the implementation of outstanding 
recommendations is set out in Appendix 3.   

7.0 Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that 
the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

8.0 Links to Council Priorities 

8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the 
Council’s strategic priorities. 

9.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

9.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  

Human Resources 

9.2 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 

Legal 

9.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

9.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

Page 130



Equality and Diversity 

9.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

9.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not comply 
with legislative requirements as 
laid out under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015. 

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the internal 
control environment.   

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

Contact Officer 

Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

07970 376542 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Audit Report – Executive Summaries 

2a. Budgetary Control; 

2b. COVID-19 Grant Schemes; 

2c. Flood Relief Scheme;  

2d. Housing Benefits; and 

2e. Licensing – Taxis. 

3 Summary Follow Up position 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Not applicable Not Applicable 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 04/04/2022 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Finance Lead Specialist 04/04/2022 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Page 131



Circulated to Date sent 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 21/04/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 132



 

 
 

 
 

Internal Audit 
 

April 2022 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report  

 2021/22 

FINAL 

P
age 133



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 1 
 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance 

Introduction 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control related issues and the progress of our work at South 

Lakeland District Council as at 1st April 2022.  

Emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control Related Issues 

2. In our recent ‘Post-Lockdown Working Practices Briefing’, we explored the results of our survey of clients to ascertain how organisations are planning to deliver some of their 

functions going forward. We asked a number of questions regarding Audit Committee meetings and their effectiveness since the pandemic started and gained thoughts on how 

these will take place once restrictions are eased. 

The experience of remotely held Audit Committees meetings has been positive with the majority of respondents recording no change in or increased attendance, efficiency and 

engagement at meetings. 

Post Lockdown Audit Committee Attendance 

 

P
age 134



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 2 
 

 Audits completed since the last SICA report to the Audit Committee 

3. The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee. 

Audits completed since previous SICA report 

  Key Dates Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft issued Responses Received Final issued 1 2 3 OEM 

Budgetary Control Substantial 13/12/2021 22/12/2021 04/01/2022 - - 3 - 

COVID-19 Grant Schemes Reasonable 22/11/2021 06/01/2022 07/02/2022 - 2 - - 

Flood Relief Scheme Substantial 10/03/2022 11/03/2022 15/03/2022 - - - - 

Housing Benefits Substantial 08/03/2022 10/03/2022 11/03/2022 - - - - 

Licensing – Taxis Reasonable 21/02/2022 01/04/2022 04/04/2022 - 3 - - 

4. There are no issues arising from these findings which would require the annual Head of Audit Opinion to be qualified. 

Progress against the 2021/22 Annual Plan 

5. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2021/22 is set out in Appendix A. 

Changes to the Annual Plan 2021/22 

6. There are no changes proposed to the Annual Plan at this time.  

Progress in actioning priority 1 recommendations 

7. We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA.  

Frauds/Irregularities 

8. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last SICA report was issued. 

Other Matters 

9. We have issued a number of briefing notes and fraud digests, shown in Appendix B, since the previous SICA report.  

Responsibility/Disclaimer 

10. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. The matters 

raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No responsibility to any third party 

is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive 

this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

P
age 135



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 3 
 

Appendix A 

Progress against Annual Plan 

System 
Planned 

Quarter 
Current Status Comments Audit Committee 

Flood Relief Scheme 1 Complete Final Report Issued April 2022 

Cyber Maturity 1 Complete Final Report Issued December 2021 

Contract Management 1 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Licensing – Taxis 1 Complete Final Report Issued April 2022 

Procurement 2 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Customer Connect – My Account 2 Complete Final Report Issued December 2021 

Information Governance 2 Complete Final Report Issued December 2021 

Debtors 2 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Covid-19 Grant Schemes 2 Complete Final Report Issued April 2022 

Budgetary Control 3 Complete Final Report Issued April 2022 

Treasury Management 3 Complete Final Report Issued December 2021 

Administration of Grants 3 Site Work Commenced  July 2022 

Housing Benefits 4 Complete Final Report Issued April 2022 

Project Management 4  Draft Report Issued 1st April 2022 July 2022 

Follow Up 1 - 4 Complete Next report to April Committee All 

KEY: 

 

 To be commenced   Site work commenced   Draft report issued   Final report issued 

P
age 136



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 4 
 

Appendix B 

Briefings on developments in Governance, Risk and Control 

TIAA produces regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk and Control which may have an impact on our clients. These are shared with clients and made 

available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to South Lakeland District Council is given below. Copies 

of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team. 

Summary of recent Client Briefing Notes (CBNs) 

CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 

CBN - 21046 
Procurement: Updated Thresholds for 

January 2022 Published 

 

For Information Only 

CBN - 21047 

Martyn’s Law - Protect Duty; Public places to 

ensure preparedness for and protection from     

terrorist attacks 

 
Action Required:  

Organisations are advised to review their security arrangements in line with their legal 

requirements and take appropriate remedial action. 

CBN - 21048 Amazon to Change Payment Methods 

 
Potential Urgent Action Required 

Clients are advised to establish whether they make any online purchases from Amazon and 

if so, whether these purchases currently use a Visa credit and/or procurement card. If this 

type of card is in use, then clients are advised to put alternative arrangements in place 

before 19th January 2022. 

CBN – 22001 
Amazon Postpones Changes to Payment 

Methods 

 Potential Urgent Action Required 

Following on from the previous related CBN in December 2021, clients are advised to 

establish what internal process changes were made as a result, and whether there is merit 

in continuing to use Visa credit cards.   

CBN - 22002 Employing Someone from Outside the UK 

 

For Information Only 

P
age 137



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 5 
 

CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 

CBN - 22003 
Transforming Public Procurement: 

Government Response to Consultation 

 

For Information Only 

CBN - 21004 
PPN 09/21: Requirements to Publish on 

Contracts Finder 

 

For Information Only 

CBN - 22006 HMRC Review into VAT Charges on EVs 

 

Action Required Not Urgent 

Organisations are advised to ensure that the appropriate HMRC compliant arrangements 

are in place.   

CBN - 22007 Amazon and VISA Settle Dispute 

 Potential Urgent Action Required 

Following on from the previous related CBN in January 2022, clients are advised to establish 

what internal process changes were made as a result of the previous announcements and 

consider whether there is merit in continuing to use Visa credit cards.   

CBN - 22010 Increased Cyber Security Risks 

 
Action Required - Urgent 

Organisations are advised to review their key operational Cybersecurity arrangements and 

take appropriate remedial action. 

 

 

 

P
age 138



 January 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   Appendix 2a  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Budgetary Control    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 139



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Budgetary Control 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Several procedure notes are available to assist Officers in the budgetary 

control process. These should be updated to reflect the current 

establishment. 

 

The Strategic Risk Register includes the expected risk of the delivery of a 

balanced budget. The risk is reviewed at least quarterly. 

 

Testing confirmed that the Council is complying with its Financial Procedure 

Rules relating to budgetary control in all material respects. 

 

Training sessions are held periodically relating to the budgetary control 

process. Officers involved in the process are appropriately qualified. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

6 - Medium Term Financial Planning – delivery of a balanced budget 

 

 

The Financial Procedure Rules include proper provisions for budget 

monitoring and reporting, including that all budgets be assigned to a budget 

holder. 

 

A detailed Budget Monitoring and Setting Timetable spreadsheet is used to 

help ensure that all reporting deadlines are met throughout the year. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for setting the budget and the medium 

term financial plan. The review also considered the arrangements for monitoring financial 

performance through management accounts and reporting. This review forms part of the 

rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 3 0 

 

P
age 140



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Budgetary Control 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed A folder of procedure notes is available on 

SharePoint which include procedures on 

Budget Module Setup and an Integra General 

Ledger Guide. The Guide includes a section on 

monthly budget monitoring reports. The 

Council has undergone recent changes to its 

establishment. The Guide was last updated in 

September 2018 and includes references to 

posts that no longer exist. 

Procedure notes be updated to reflect 

the current establishment. 

3 Accepted. To be updated by 31st 

January 2022 

Claire 

Chouchoulas 

2 Directed The Council's website has a page headed 

Financial Planning which provides a link to the 

Medium Term Financial Plan. The link directs 

to the MTFP for 2018/19 to 2023/24. At its 

meeting on 27th July 2021, Council approved 

the MTFP for 2021/22 to 2026/27. 

The link to the Medium Term Financial 

Plan on the Financial Planning page of 

the Council's website be updated to 

reference the current version of the 

MTFP. 

3 Accepted. To be updated by 31st 

January 2022 

Helen Smith 

P
age 141



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Budgetary Control 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Directed Paragraph 4 of the Financial Procedure Rules 

states that reports will be submitted to the 

Management Team, Cabinet and Council 

quarterly on the Council’s projected income 

and expenditure compared with the budget. 

The previous Assurance Review of Budgetary 

Control, issued in September 2018, included 

a recommendation that this Paragraph be 

complied with, rather than the existing 

practice of showing only projected out-turn. 

The Financial Services Manager responded at 

the time that each quarterly report will not be 

amended to disclose projected income and 

projected expenditure separately, rather 

than netting these off to show only out-turn 

projection. 

Paragraph 4 of the Financial Procedure 

Rules be clarified to confirm that a 

reference in quarterly budget 

monitoring reports to "Outturn 

Projections" refers to and complies 

with the Rules' requirement to show 

"projected income and expenditure 

compared with the budget". 

3 Accepted. To be updated by 31st 

March 2022 

Helen Smith 

 

P
age 142



   

 

            

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Budgetary Control 

Page 4 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 143



 

 January 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   Appendix 2b  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of COVID-19 Grant Schemes    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 144



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of COVID-19 Grant Schemes 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Testing supported that the Council has properly managed and administered 

the various Covid-related business grant schemes in line with Government 

guidance. 

 

All events relevant to the determination of the grant claims should be 

summarised and captured within the software that was used to manage the 

claims. 

 

The risk of fraudulent applications was mitigated using appropriate 

measures, including site visits, data validation techniques and local 

knowledge. 

 

When requiring the applicant to self-certify eligibility, all eligibility criteria 

relevant to the grant should be requested of the applicant. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

21 – Accountable Body for large value schemes 

 

 

The use of relevant, reliable software greatly assisted in the management 

and administration of the various Covid-related grant schemes. 

 

The Council responded promptly and appropriately to the issued 

Government guidance and adapted its software accordingly to 

accommodate any new pronouncements. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

SLDC has been responsible for distributing Government grants and support during the 

pandemic. The review considered the management and administration of the various grant 

schemes that have been in operation in response to the pandemic, including the 

assessment of eligibility and the measures in place to mitigate fraud.  

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 2 0 0 

 

P
age 145



   

 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of COVID-19 Grant Schemes 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed The software used by the Council to manage 

and administer the Covid grants includes a 

series of tabs to aid navigation. One such tab 

is named Notes and provides a summary of 

the key events for each claim, such as: 

application date; date reviewed; name of 

reviewer; and decision date. It also contains 

additional events such as queries raised by 

team members prior to the final decision. It 

was determined that not all such ad-hoc 

events were retained within the software, but 

rather were carried out informally, such as 

through emails or phone calls between 

Officers. 

All events relating to grant claims, 

including ad-hoc or more informal 

queries and in-team discussions and 

determinations, be summarised and 

captured within the software. 

2 Due to the high volumes of applications 

being dealt with during these grant 

schemes and the pressure from 

Government and businesses to roll out 

the grants in a timely manner, it is 

accepted that not all advice offered 

between colleagues was recorded 

through the Notes function. Any ad-hoc 

advice will be registered through the 

Notes tab by the validating officer, 

along with details of the advising 

officer. It remains standard practice 

that where a validation officer is wholly 

unsure on the eligibility of the 

applicant, that the application is 

reallocated to a senior officer for 

validation. 

01/01/22* Gareth Candlin 

(Specialist 

Services Lead) 

P
age 146



   

 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of COVID-19 Grant Schemes 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed The software used by the Council to manage 

and administer the Covid grants includes a 

confirmation of eligibility section, to be 

signed electronically by the applicant. From a 

review of related Government guidance and 

local policies, it was noted that this section 

does not include the complete list of eligibility 

criteria. 

All grant-eligibility criteria listed within 

Government guidance or local policy be 

included in the applicant's self-

certification of eligibility. 

2 All applicants were given sight of the 

eligibility criteria for each scheme prior 

to applying for a COVID-19 business 

grant, and all grants were validated 

internally against the given criteria. We 

will ensure that all eligibility criteria as 

per Government guidance and, where 

appropriate, local SLDC qualifying 

policy under discretionary schemes, are 

fully listed under the Declarations 

sections of the business grant 

application to ensure full compliance 

with the grant criteria. 

01/01/22* Gareth Candlin 

(Specialist 

Services Lead) 

 

*It is expected that SLDC will launch the final COVID-19 business grant scheme in early 2022, therefore implementation will occur alongside this scheme for the remaining Additional 

Restrictions Grant funding and any subsequent grants announced by central Government. 

 

P
age 147



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of COVID-19 Grant Schemes 

Page 4 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 148



 

 March 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   Appendix 2c  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Flood Relief Scheme    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 149



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Flood Relief Scheme 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

The Council has properly identified the risk associated with being the 

Accountable Body for large value schemes. This is reported quarterly to 

Cabinet. 

 

Testing confirmed that the scheme is properly managed, with sufficient 

documentation being retained to support each of the Council's quarterly 

claims to MHCLG. 

 

A Council Plan Target relating to the scheme is monitored and is reported 

quarterly to Cabinet. 

 

Quarterly Financial Updates are presented to Cabinet and Council, including 

Capital Programme Monitoring of the ERDF Funded Flood Defence. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

21 - Accountable Body for large value schemes 

 

 

The Council's Constitution details the requirements relating to the Council's 

responsibilities as an Accountable Body. 

 

A Claims Checklist template is completed for each of the Council's quarterly 

claims to MHCLG. This helps ensure that procedures have been properly 

followed. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

South Lakeland District Council is acting as the accountable body for European Regional 

Development Funding (ERDF) to deliver a flood relief scheme that is intended to increase 

the level of flood protection for Kendal and other locations within the River Kent catchment 

area. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 0 0 

 

P
age 150



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Flood Relief Scheme 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

There are no recommendations arising from this review. 

 

P
age 151



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Flood Relief Scheme 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 152



 

 March 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   Appendix 2d  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Housing Benefits    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 153



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Housing Benefits 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Testing confirmed that the Council continues to have proper arrangements 

in place for the processing of housing benefits claims. 

 

Payments are properly authorised in advance and a sufficient segregation of 

duties is observed. Higher value payments are subject to additional controls. 

 

Strategic and operational risks relating to the service have been identified 

and are regularly monitored with mitigations in place. 

 

Over the previous 12 reported months, the Council has performed 

favourably in comparison with regional average speed-of-processing times. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

5 - Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities, Council operations and resources 

 

 

Key areas of responsibility relating to housing benefits are stated within the 

Council's Constitution. 

 

The Council's website provides a variety of information to housing benefit 

claimants, including online claim forms, and is a useful resource. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for processing housing benefit claims and 

payments. This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and 

governance audits. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 0 0 

 

P
age 154



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Housing Benefits 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

There are no recommendations arising from this review. 

 

P
age 155



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Housing Benefits 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 156



 

 April 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   Appendix 2e  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 157



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

The Council complies with its statutory obligations relating to taxi licensing, 

although the overall control environment could be strengthened. 

 

The required public registers are up-to-date and accurate and are published 

on the Council's website. 

 

There are currently no budget variances of sufficient significance to require 

individual reporting in the quarterly updates to Cabinet. 

 

The Council's website has dedicated pages relating to taxi licensing, including 

guidance notes, application forms and a list of current fees and charges. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

6 - Medium Term Financial Planning – delivery of a balanced budget 

 

 

The Council's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy is clear and 

comprehensive, referencing current legislation and best practice guidance. 

 

Both the Licensing Regulatory Committee and its Sub-Committee meet 

regularly and are fulfilling their intended purposes. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review was in the form of a compliance audit with checks undertaken around criminal 

record checks, driving licences, MOT and insurance. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 3 0 0 

 

P
age 158



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Testing revealed three instances whereby the 

person's UK driving licence had expired since 

the date of application for a Council-issued 

driver's licence. Sections 51(1) (b) and 59(1) 

(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976 require that the Council 

shall not grant a licence to drive a private hire 

vehicle or a hackney carriage to any person 

who has not for at least twelve months been 

authorised to drive a motor car, or is not at 

the date of the application for a driver’s 

licence so authorised. Whilst testing showed 

the Council to be fulfilling its statutory 

obligations in this regard, the Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 

does not mention the situation of a person 

continuing to drive a private hire vehicle or a 

hackney carriage whilst holding a driving 

licence that has expired. 

The Council's position be clarified 

regarding the situation of a person 

continuing to drive a private hire 

vehicle or a hackney carriage whilst 

holding a driving licence that has 

expired. 

2 SLDC accepts this recommendation and 

will proceed to implement. 

01/07/22 Sean Hall – 

Principal 

Specialist 

Health and 

Environment  

P
age 159



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed Under powers granted by Section 57 (2) of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 

Act 1976, the Council's Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Licensing Policy requires that a 

standard of fitness report be completed in 

respect of each driver at least every three 

years. Testing revealed one instance whereby 

the driver's standard of fitness report was not 

current. Sections 51 (1) (a) (i) and 59 (1) (a) (i) 

of the 1976 Act requires that the Council shall 

not grant a licence unless it is satisfied that 

the applicant is a fit and proper person to 

hold a driver’s licence. Towards this statutory 

requirement, the Policy requires that drivers 

provide an Enhanced Disclosure and Barring 

Service (DBS) certificate at least every three 

years. Testing revealed one instance whereby 

the driver's DBS certificate was not current. 

Documents required by the Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 

Policy that become due for renewal be 

sought on a timely basis. 

2 SLDC accepts this recommendation and 

will proceed to implement. 

01/07/22 Sean Hall – 

Principal 

Specialist 

Health and 

Environment  

P
age 160



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis 

Page 4 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Directed There were some instances whereby the 

Council's taxi licensing software indicated 

that a document had been verified by an 

Officer, however, that document could not be 

evidenced during testing. Discussions with 

the Team Leader – Customer & Commercial 

Services indicated that this would occur if a 

document is not properly linked to the 

driver's record when the record is added or 

amended. It is understood that there is 

currently no peer-review of additions or 

amendments to a driver's record. 

A periodic independent review of a 

sample of additions and amendments 

to a driver record in the taxi licensing 

software be implemented. 

2 SLDC accepts this recommendation and 

will proceed to implement. 

01/07/22 Sean Hall – 

Principal 

Specialist 

Health and 

Environment  

 

P
age 161



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Licensing – Taxis 

Page 5 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 162



 

 

 

 

Internal Audit 
 

April 2022 

 

   

 

 
 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Follow Up Review 

 2021/22 

FINAL 

P
age 163



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of the recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed below at 

South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in March 2022. 

Review Year Date Presented to Audit Committee 

Follow-up – November 2021 2021/22 8th December 2021 

Information Governance 2021/22 8th December 2021 

Treasury Management 2021/22 8th December 2021 

Customer Connect – ‘My Account’ 2021/22 8th December 2021 

Key Findings & Action Points 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of these 

recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of the progress of 

the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 10 

Outstanding 27 

Considered but not Implemented / No longer applicable 1 

Not Implemented - 

P
age 164



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 2 

 

3. The key issue identified is that although there has been some slippage, most recently due to COVID-19 and Local Government Reform, recommendations continue to be 

implemented. Of the 38 recommendations in this report, 26% have either been implemented or have been superseded by substantially similar recommendations on more recent 

reports. Of the 27 recommendations that remain outstanding, 81% are due to slippage beyond the original implementation date and 19% are because the original implementation 

date has not yet arrived. One recommendation will not now be implemented as it is no longer applicable, due to recent changes in practice. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review  

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and established the extent to which management 

has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 

weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit 

procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive 

fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 

authenticity of these documents. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all 

the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole 

or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 

purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 

whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Release of Report 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 25th March 2022 

Date management responses rec’d: 4th April 2022 

Date final report issued: 4th April 2022 

Revised final report issued: 8th April 2022 

  

P
age 165



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 3 

 

Executive Summary 

Follow Up 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these management 

representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

10. Follow-up – November 2021 

Audit title Licensing – Premises & Clubs Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Statement of Licensing Policy be amended to reflect the current application routes. 

Initial management response The policy is set by statutory guidance from the Home Office, underpinning this there is an EU service provision directive requiring on line applications and 

payments. The current IT suppliers do not provide this capability and we have already recognised this as a significant weakness in the current system and is one of 

the main IT requirements in the new IT solution.  This is a key finding of the gap analysis. Due to the work involved and the cost we propose action is deferred until 

the new IT product is delivered. 

Responsible Officer/s Principal Specialist (Health & 

Environment) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2018 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/10/2021 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) advised that the action remains outstanding but that progress has been made with higher priority application forms, 

several of which are due to go live before end of March (TENs, Hackney Carriage Vehicle, Private Hire Vehicle). These will be followed by driver applications as the 

next priority. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 166



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 4 

 

Audit title Awarding of Grants Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation An overarching policy on the provision of financial aid be approved which addresses any potential provision of State Aid. 

Initial management response Following completion of the review recommended at point 10 above, an overarching policy can be prepared which will set out the broad principles to be taken into 

account when entering into grant arrangements with an economic activity. This will be completed within 3 months of completion of recommendation 10. 

Responsible Officer/s Legal, Governance and 

Democratic Services Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

31/03/2021 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update Draft documentation regarding the Subsidy Control regime and compliance has been prepared and a workshop has been held with relevant officers to discuss 

principles/approach. The Subsidy Control Bill, which will provide the framework for a new UK-wide subsidy control regime, is anticipated to take effect later in 

2022. It is proposed therefore that work / documentation planned as part of this recommendation needs to align with the new Bill (which is potentially subject to 

further amendments at this stage). The proposed new implementation date is, therefore, subject to the legislation coming into force and further updates will be 

provided as necessary. 

New implementation date 30/09/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation Procedures be amended to highlight the importance of the existing mitigating controls that address the risk that a separation of duties does not exist between the 

person raising and the person authorising a sales invoice and the risk that authorisation levels for sales invoices are not defined. 

Initial management response There are an increasing proportion of invoices raised through interfaces from other systems, particularly for rents from the Technology Forge system which would 

complicate the approval process. The Customer Connect programme includes a full review of all processes. This recommendation will be considered as part of that 

review. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

30/06/2021 

30/11/2021 

31/01/2022 

Latest Update The Case Management Team Leader (Support Services) previously advised that further delays to the service redesign, notably due to the Local Government Reform, 

would suggest that the previously advised due date of 31/01/2022 will not now be met and that a further revision to 31/03/2022 would be more realistic. The 

update received during this review was that this task has now been taken over by the Finance Lead Specialist who advises that this will be addressed as part of the 

design of day 1 services for the Westmorland and Furness Council. 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 167



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 5 

 

Audit title Household Waste Collection Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation Current terms of reference for the Waste and Recycling Project Board be formulated and subject to periodic review and approval. 

Initial management response Review at next Project Board meet with input from Simon and Sion. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead for Delivery and 

Commercial Services/ Principal 

Street Scene Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

September 2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2021 

30/06/2021 

30/09/2021 

30/06/2022 

Latest Update The Delivery and Commercial Officer (Delivery and Commercial Services) advised that the Waste and Recycling Project Board has now been superseded by the Local 

Government Review Waste Working Group. The recommendation is, therefore, no longer applicable. 

New implementation date No longer applicable Status No longer applicable The recommendation is no longer applicable. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 1 

Recommendation A guidance procedure be developed to provide responsible officers with a framework for managing and monitoring their contracts. 

Initial management response Noted that this is the case. Updated guidance procedure to be developed and implemented in line with recommendations 11 and 9. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist & 

Procurement Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/05/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/12/2021 

31/01/2022 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist stated that procurement regulations have been updated and the guidance is in progress but there is further slight slippage. 

New implementation date 30/04/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation The contract management and procedure documents be updated to reflect the new procurement and contract management processes within the Council. 

Initial management response Noted and agreed. There is conflicting policy information which is leading to poor practice. Currently liaising with Strategy Specialist. 

Responsible Officer/s Procurement Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/05/2021 

31/10/2021 

31/01/2022 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist stated that these are being currently revised, as Procurement Procedure Rules have been published. 

New implementation date 30/04/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 168



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 6 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation A standard format for all contract files be developed including a contract risk register. 

Initial management response Noted and agreed. Although there are some template documents the portfolio needs to be increased and included in the training. 

Responsible Officer/s Procurement Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/05/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/05/2021 

31/10/2021 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist stated documentation has been reviewed by the Procurement Team and that the implementation date stands. 

New implementation date 31/03/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Leisure Services Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation A risk register for third party contracts be developed to reduce the risk of non-compliance of contract monitoring, as stated within the Contract Management Policy. 

Initial management response Risk Register to be created for this contract. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/06/2021 

01/01/2022 

Latest Update The Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services has confirmed that a meeting is being held with Leisure Services on 13/04/2022 where the Risk Register 

will be prepared and signed off. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 
 

 
 

Audit title Insurance Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Annual Renewal of Insurance Contract Procedure be updated. 

Initial management response Accepted, work will be undertaken in the summer to update policy and procedures. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Specialist and Deputy 

S151 Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Specialist and Deputy S151 Officer previously advised that the process will be reviewed and updated as the annual renewal process is carried out over 

the next three to six months and is now being incorporated into the processes for LGR 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not been met. 

 
 

P
age 169



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 7 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation A detailed Financial Scheme of Delegation table be included in the Financial Procedures. 

Initial management response Authorisation limits are currently set within the Integra system so when POs are raised they are sent to the authoriser with the relevant limit. We are currently 

developing a self-serve SharePoint page incorporating easy to use guidance and access to a Crystal Report detailing all authorisers and their limits. The finance 

procedures will be updated to reference the information on SharePoint. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (Finance), Finance Lead 

Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2021 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Specialist (Finance) advised that this recommendation relates to the introduction of the Finance self-service page on the Intranet and is still awaiting a timeline 

for implementation from the IT department. It is acknowledged that several update requests have been submitted to the IT department in this regard, but action 

is still outstanding. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Financial Procedures document be updated to include references to the Government's Prompt Payment Code and any other regulations relating to the prompt 

settlement of invoices. 

Initial management response A link to the Government’s Prompt Payment Code will be added to the Finance self-serve SharePoint page, again with reference to this added into the finance 

procedure rules. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (Finance), Finance Lead 

Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2021 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Specialist (Finance) advised that this recommendation relates to the introduction of the Finance self-service page on the Intranet and is still awaiting a timeline 

for implementation from the IT department. It is acknowledged that several update requests have been submitted to the IT department in this regard, but action 

is still outstanding. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 
 

 

P
age 170



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 8 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy be reviewed in accordance with its stated review cycle. 

Initial management response The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy will be reviewed in 2021 to 2022. This will include a consultation period before the revised Policy goes through the relevant 

approval process. 

Responsible Officer/s Amanda Pharaoh (Specialist – 

Housing) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update A revised policy has now been drafted. This is intended to be presented at Cabinet on 08/06/2022 for approval. 

New implementation date 30/09/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not be met. 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy be enhanced to include: its link to Council priorities; and more explicit service standards. 

Initial management response The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy will be reviewed in 2021 to 2022. This will include a consultation period before the revised Policy goes through the relevant 

approval process. 

Responsible Officer/s Amanda Pharaoh (Specialist – 

Housing) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update A revised policy has now been drafted. This is intended to be presented at Cabinet on 08/06/2022 for approval. 

New implementation date 30/09/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not be met. 
 

 

P
age 171



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 9 

 

Audit title Asset Management Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A set of procedure notes be prepared which cover all aspects of fixed asset management including the following: accounting and depreciation; maintenance and 

repairs; security and insurance; investment and budgeting; verification and audit; valuation and impairment cycles by asset class; and asset management systems 

used. 

Initial management response Agreed. A multi-disciplinary group has meet to discuss the practicality of this. Initially the procedure notes will concentrate on the higher-value assets, with some 

assets prepared later (e.g. museum collection). 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist supported 

by IT Shared Service Manager 

and Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2022 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist stated that Officers have met and agreed the process and some elements of the task are completed. Additional requests related to LGR 

may reduce the resources available to fully conclude this recommendation and it is now more likely to be completed by the end of the financial year. 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 in readiness for the 

new Council and as part of the 

LGR Assets work package. 

Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not be met. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Paragraph 5 of Article 14 to the Constitution be followed in that contracts over £60,000 be under seal. Paragraph 25.1 of the Contract Procedure Rules be followed 

in that contracts over £10,000 be in writing. Paragraph 25.4.8 be followed in that contracts over £60,000 shall include a consideration of the need for liquidated 

damages. 

Initial management response Instruction to be issued to Assets and Commercial team to adhere to Contract procedure rules and no works to commence on site without contract being in place. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead for Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/08/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update An update was provided to the Audit Committee December 2021 meeting by Delivery and Commercial Services (Appendix 3(a) item AUD/25) noting that actions 

have been taken to ensure that the constitution and procedure rules will be adhered to and if required exemptions and approvals will be sought in future. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 172



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 10 

 

Audit title Procurement Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation In compliance with the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015, procurement information be published on a quarterly basis. 

In line with a recommendation of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015, consideration be given to publishing this data at least monthly. 

Initial management response The Specialist-Performance, Innovation and Commissioning will look at the process for publication with the Caseworker for Freedom of Information. URL links will 

be tested and the information will be published on a quarterly basis. Monthly publication has been considered, but may be unachievable due to LGR workload 

issues. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist –Performance, 

Innovation and Commissioning 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Specialist –Performance, Innovation and Commissioning advised that In line with Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 

procurement information will be published on the Council website. Work will continue with the Caseworker for Freedom of Information, Business Process Analysts 

and Web Development Team. URL links will be tested and the information will be published on a quarterly basis in readiness for the start of 2022/23 financial year. 

New implementation date 01/04/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

11. Information Governance 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Regular meetings of the Information Governance Group be reintroduced. 

Initial management response Agree – quarterly meetings of SLDC Information Governance Board to be reintroduced. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Cumbria Information Governance/ Data Protection Officer Working Group supports the strategic oversight and direction to the development and operation of 

the Cumbria Local Government Reorganisation Data and Intelligence Hub in order to achieve the overarching aims of establishing approaches to information sharing 

(governance and technical) across the programme. The Cumbria Information Governance/ Data Protection Officer Working Group is chaired by the Performance, 

Innovation and Commissioning Specialist. The Information Governance Group will be set up in line with the Shadow Authority arrangements and Part 3 18(2)(e) 

and (f) of the Cumbria (Structural Changes ) Order 2022. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 173



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 11 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation To ensure all staff have an appropriate level of data protection awareness, appropriate mandatory training be put in place for all staff with attendance recorded. 

Initial management response Agree with recommendations – linked to Information and Cyber Security Audit Recommendations - current e-learning package to be reviewed in light of new staff 

roles - notably Customer Contact and Case Management roles. Consult and seek recommendations from Corporate Learning & Development Team. Resources to 

be made available, and a training package to be developed and used as part of a regular cycle of training for staff. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update On target – in accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: 

Full Security Awareness Platform (rather than just e-learning or a phishing tool) to help drive culture and user behaviour changes. 

 Combination of awareness formats catered for: Videos, Courses, Phishing Simulation, Policies, Posters, Screen-Saver & Newsletters. 

 Consistent and Up-To-Date library of short video content available in multiple languages. 

 Fusion Course Creation Engine allows for courses to be tailored and customised to the needs of the business and individual, high risk groups. 

 Newsletter/Blog engine to deliver best practice guidance directly to user’s inboxes. 

 Mature and Automated AD User Provisioning system to allow content targeting to react to changes within South Lakeland District Council. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The overarching Data Protection Policy be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation to highlight supporting guidance, protocols, procedures and policies. 

Initial management response Agree – Data Protection Policy to be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation across all data protection and information governance framework 

documents. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The overarching Policy will be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation to highlight supporting guidance, protocols, procedures and policies in line with 

the Shadow Authority arrangements and Part 3 18(2)(e) and (f) of the Cumbria (Structural Changes ) Order 2022. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 174



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 12 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation A Data Protection training needs analysis be undertaken to identify roles that would benefit from additional training due to their additional Data Protection / 

Information Governance responsibilities and appropriate training be delivered. 

Initial management response Agree with recommendations – linked to Information and Cyber Security Audit Recommendations - current e-learning package to be reviewed in light of new staff 

roles - notably Customer Contact and Case Management roles. Consult and seek recommendations from Corporate Learning & Development Team. Resources to 

be made available, and a training package to be developed and used as part of a regular cycle of training for staff. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update On target – in accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: 

Full Security Awareness Platform (rather than just e-learning or a phishing tool) to help drive culture and user behaviour changes. 

 Combination of awareness formats catered for: Videos, Courses, Phishing Simulation, Policies, Posters, Screen-Saver & Newsletters. 

 Consistent and Up-To-Date library of short video content available in multiple languages. 

 Fusion Course Creation Engine allows for courses to be tailored and customised to the needs of the business and individual, high risk groups. 

 Newsletter/Blog engine to deliver best practice guidance directly to user’s inboxes. 

 Mature and Automated AD User Provisioning system to allow content targeting to react to changes within South Lakeland District Council. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The review and maintenance of the RoPA and IAR be conducted annually as stated in the Information Data Audit procedure. 

Initial management response Agree – current RoPA and IAR to be reviewed. Procedural documentation to be established to ensure annual review and maintenance is stated and implemented. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update In accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: 

 Develop a Council wide Business Classification Scheme (BCS). A platform for an improved information architecture forming an essential component of 

the information governance framework. A fit for purpose BCS to enhance activity: Grouping information; supporting retrieval of records relating to a 

function or activity; assigning access rights and security protection and assigning retention periods and disposal. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not be met. 

 

P
age 175



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 13 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation A general description of technical and organisational security measures be included within SLDC's processing documentation. 

Initial management response Agree – current RoPA to be reviewed. Procedural documentation to be established to ensure annual review and maintenance is stated and implemented. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update In accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: 

 Develop a Council wide Business Classification Scheme (BCS). A platform for an improved information architecture forming an essential component of 

the information governance framework. A fit for purpose BCS to enhance activity: Grouping information; supporting retrieval of records relating to a 

function or activity; assigning access rights and security protection and assigning retention periods and disposal. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

will not be met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Subject Access Requests be completed within the required one month timescale or an extension agreed. 

Initial management response Agree – Subject Access Request protocol and procedures to be updated in line with recommendation. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update No further update was provided for this review. 

New implementation date 01/06/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The responsibility for cover of the DPO's duties when unavailable be delegated and documented. 

Initial management response Agree – DPO delegated duties to be documented. Details to be approved through SLDC Information Governance Board. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update No further update was provided for this review. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age 176



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 14 

 

12. Treasury Management 

Audit title Treasury Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The contract with Link Treasury Services Limited, which ended on 31st March 2021, be formally extended to cover the ongoing service provision. 

Initial management response This was overlooked during a busy period. The contract will be formally extended as soon as possible. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update This task is still outstanding and is being resolved for both 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

New implementation date 31/05/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Treasury Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Council's Treasury Management Practices be updated and then reviewed periodically. 

Initial management response Will be included as part of the approval process for the 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy to be considered by Council in February 2022. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Specialist (Deputy s151 

Officer) 

Original implementation 

date 

22/02/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update This will be included in the Treasury Management Annual Report to Cabinet in June 2022 and Council in July 2022 

New implementation date 31/07/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 177



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 15 

 

13. Customer Connect – ‘My Account’ 

Audit title Customer Connect – ‘My 

Account’ 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Privacy Impact Assessments be completed for My Account and the ESB technology platform including any other related or interfacing systems. 

Initial management response Some progress on PIA, need to complete and ensure built into day to day activity. 

Responsible Officer/s Head of Shared ICT 

Operational Lead for Customer 

and Locality 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update - 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original 

implementation date has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Customer Connect – ‘My 

Account’ 

Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The arrangements for system(s) ownership and information / system security be agreed and formalised. This could be based around a hierarchy of responsibilities 

including the retention of the RAPID, ‘Design Authority’ decision making process. 

Initial management response 1. System Ownership: Part of the changes to the project delivery have improved the understanding of responsibility and accountability across the project team and 

upwards to Leadership. We have two product owners who take a lead in defining the priorities and requirements which has helped structure the work into a more 

defined plan. The Digital product owns spans both SLDC and Eden and ensures that a consistent approach to the platform is adopted. 

2. Information Security: This will be driven as a result of the PIA process as mentioned in the above recommendation for both SLDC and Eden. This will be enhanced 

as per the above recommendation. 

3. Decision Making Process: Any decisions/issues that need escalated above the project team will be to Head of ICT and Operational Lead for Customer and Locality. 

Head of ICT also sits on Leadership across both SLDC and Eden. Any design decisions are part of this process and the appropriate method for resolving them is 

implemented whether this be RAPID or alternative. 

Responsible Officer/s Head of Shared ICT 

Operational Lead for Customer 

and Locality 

Original implementation 

date 

1. Complete 

2. 31/03/2022 

3. Complete 

Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update - 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original 

implementation date has not yet arrived. 
  

P
age 178



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 16 

 

14. The following recommendations have been implemented. 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Contract Management All projects be identified prior to the start of the new financial year. 3 Finance Lead Specialist 

with Procurement 

Specialist 

31/03/2020 

Insurance A periodic reconciliation be performed between the system operated by Fleet and the 

claims system maintained by the Insurance Team to help ensure that all motor insurance 

work is properly claimed. 

2 Operational Lead 

Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

30/01/2018 

NNDR A review of resources be undertaken and an action plan be developed to address the 

backlog of work and to ensure that there are adequate resources going forward. 

2 Operational Lead – 

Case Management 

30/06/2021 

Council Tax A review of resources be undertaken and an action plan be developed to address the 

backlog of work and to ensure that there are adequate resources going forward. 

2 Operational Lead – 

Case Management 

30/06/2021 

Contract Management Contract Procedure Rules be followed for each procurement exercise unless a Request For 

Exemption From The Contract Procedure Rules Form has been properly completed and 

approved. 

2 Operational Lead for 

Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

31/08/2021 

Lake Services Invoiced amounts for encroachments be properly determined using accurate 

encroachment dimensions. Agreements be updated accordingly and invoices raised at 

correct rates, be they residential or commercial. This proper determination of invoiced 

amounts be effected more economically via a phased approach, on a case by case basis, 

rather than a full lake survey. 

2 Operational Lead for 

Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

31/03/2022 

Procurement Contract Procedure Rules be followed for each procurement exercise unless a Request For 

Exemption From The Contract Procedure Rules form has been properly completed and 

approved. 

2 Procurement Specialist 31/12/2021 

Procurement Request For Exemption From The Contract Procedure Rules forms be held in a single 

location visible to all Officers who would need access. Only one form be used to evidence 

all required authorisations. 

2 Procurement Specialist 31/12/2021 

Treasury Management Links from the Council's Fund Management web page and the Policies and Plans web page 

to the Treasury Management Framework and the Treasury Management Strategy be kept 

up-to-date. 

3 Finance Lead Specialist Implemented 

P
age 179



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 17 

 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Customer Connect – ‘My Account’ A project plan be compiled for the ongoing roll-out of My Account on-line forms and 

processes. The development of transaction streams within My Account be prioritised 

within an overall SLDC project / programme portfolio. Note: This recommendation will 

need to be viewed in the context of the proposed Local Government Reorganisation in 

Cumbria. 

2 Head of Shared ICT 

Operational Lead for 

Customer and Locality 

Implemented 

 

P
age 180



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer 

Report Author: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager, Regional Managing Director, 
TIAA Limited 

Wards:  Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Internal Audit is required, under the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS), to prepare an annual risk based audit plan for approval by the Audit 
Committee. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit Committee:  

(1) Approves the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2022-23 which is attached at 
Appendix 1.  

(2) Approves the Audit Charter, which for 2022-23, has been incorporated in to 
the Annual Plan. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors describes internal auditing as “an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve an organisation’s operations. Internal audit helps the Council to achieve its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluating and improving 
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.”  

3.2.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the Council to undertake an adequate 
and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control 
in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal control. Proper Practices are 
now defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which became 
mandatory for all UK public sector internal auditors from 1st April 2013.  

3.3.  The PSIAS affirm the need for annual risk based audit plans to be developed in order 
that the Head of Internal Audit can form an annual opinion on the Council’s systems of 
risk management, governance and internal control.  

3.4  The draft Internal Audit Annual Plan attached at Appendix 1 has been prepared 
following review of corporate documents including the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register, corporate plans and recent internal audit coverage. 

Page 181

Item No.13



3.5 In light of Local Government Reorganisation, it is important that the plan remains 
flexible to respond to changing priorities during the course of the year. 

4.0 Internal Audit Service Delivery 

4.1 The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit plan sets out a high level statement of how 
the Internal Audit Service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the 
internal audit charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.  

4.2.  Internal Audit for South Lakeland District Council is delivered by TIAA Limited under a 
contractual arrangement since 1st April 2016.  

4.3.  Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place across the 
Council to deliver priorities and objectives.    

4.4.  It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the Council has an Internal Audit Charter which 
has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Charter sets out the arrangements for the delivery of the Internal Audit service to South 
Lakeland District Council (the Council). The Charter is incorporated in to the Annual 
Plan; by approving the Annual Plan, the Committee is also approving the Audit Charter 
which it is required to do annually.  

Roles of Management and of Internal Audit  

5.1  It is the role of management to establish effective systems of governance, risk 

management and internal controls in order to:  

 safeguard the Council’s resources and prevent fraud;  

 ensure the completeness and reliability of records;  

 monitor adherence to laws, regulations, policies and procedures;  

 promote operational efficiency demonstrate the achievement of value for 

money; and  

 manage risk.  

5.2  It is the responsibility of management to establish the checks and balances needed to 
confirm that their systems are working effectively, that all information within them is 
accurate, that they are free from fraud or error.  

5.3  Internal audit’s role is to provide assurance that management are undertaking the 
appropriate checks over their systems to confirm that they are working effectively.  It 
is not the role of internal audit to re-perform management’s checks or to undertake 
such checking on management’s behalf.    

5.4  In order to safeguard its independence, Internal Audit does not have any operational 
responsibilities and is not responsible for any of the decision making, policy setting or 
monitoring of compliance within the Council.     

6.0  Internal Audit Resources   

6.1  The Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer has contracted with TIAA Limited to 
deliver 195 days of Internal Audit time in 2021-22. This is deemed a sufficient number 
of audit days in which to provide an opinion on the systems of governance, risk and 

Page 182



internal control in line with the PSIAS and in order to support the preparation of the 
Annual Governance Statement.  

6.2  The PSIAS also reflect the requirement for internal audit plans to be flexible in order to 
respond to new and emerging risks to the organisation. The Plan will be subject to 
regular review to ensure it remains appropriate and may be subject to revision. In this 
event, revisions would be considered and agreed by the Finance Lead Specialist and 
S151 Officer and reported to the Audit Committee, including the need for any additional 
audit resources if appropriate. Any request for significant consulting activity by Internal 
Audit would be approved by the Audit Committee in line with the requirements of the 
PSIAS.  

7.0  Categories of Internal Audit Work  

7.1  Corporate Reviews – these are reviews which are strategic in nature or which cut 
across the entire Council. These reviews are designed to provide assurance that the 
Council has effective governance and risk management arrangements to mitigate 
strategic risks.  

7.2  Departmental Risk-Based Audit Reviews – these reviews have been identified in 
consultation with senior management and following review of corporate plans and the 
Corporate Risk Register. These reviews are spread across service areas following a 
risk assessment to ensure that Internal Audit resources are targeted at the areas where 
the greatest benefit will be achieved.   

7.3  Financial System Reviews – A three-year programme has been devised which will 
ensure that each main financial system is reviewed in depth at least once every three 
years.    

7.4  Governance System Reviews – a provision is included for cyclical reviews of key 
governance systems.  

7.5  Computer Audit – the Plan includes provision for computer audit work which will 
provide assurance over the technical controls in place for key IT systems and 
processes.  

7.6  Audit Management, Advice and Guidance – capacity has been built into the Plan for 
audit management, planning and reporting. This also includes some provision for 
formal advice and guidance to all services across the Council.    

7.7  The follow up of previous audit requirements is a key requirement of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards to provide assurance on the successful implementation of 
agreed recommendations. Where an audit has received a lower level assurance rating 
(i.e. partial or limited assurance) in the previous year, Internal Audit will now undertake 
a formal follow up of the management actions which have been undertaken to address 
the agreed audit recommendations; this will include formal interviewing, audit testing 
and reporting to provide senior officers and members with the required independent 
assurance that key areas for improvement address have been addressed. 

8.0 Alternative Options 

8.1 The production of a risk based audit plan is a key requirement of the PSIAS. There 
are no alternative options. 

Page 183



9.0 Links to Council Priorities 

9.1 Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place across the 
Council to deliver priorities and objectives. 

10.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

10.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

Human Resources 

10.2 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

Legal 

10.3 There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

10.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

10.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct health, social, 
economic or environmental impacts.   

Equality and Diversity 

10.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

10.7 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

 This report relates to a corporate governance issue and has no direct equality or 
diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal Audit coverage does not 

address the high risk areas of 

Council activity.   

Internal Audit coverage 

does not address the high 

risk areas of Council 

activity.   

Non-delivery of the agreed 

Audit Plan. Unplanned 

work which arises in year 

which requires audit 

attention. 

The Council would be more 

vulnerable to risk. 

The Council does not 

receive adequate 

assurance over the internal 

control environment.   

Potential breach of the 

statutory requirement to 

maintain an adequate and 

effective system of internal 

control.   

Risk based annual audit 

planning.  

Regular progress reporting 

to senior management and 

Audit Committee each 

quarter.  

Page 184



Risk Consequence Controls required 

A degree of flexibility in the 

Plan to accommodate 

unplanned work. 

Contact Officers 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison, Regional Managing Director, TIAA Limited. 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2022-23 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 04/04/2022 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Finance Lead Specialist 04/04/2022 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 21/04/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 186



 

  

 

    INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

 

   

South Lakeland District Council 
   

Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 
   

2022/23 
 
  

   

April 2022   DRAFT 

P
age 187



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 1 

 

OVERVIEW 

Introduction 

The Audit Plan for 2022/23 has been informed by a risk assessment carried out across our Local Government clients and by an updated audit risk assessment to ensure that planned coverage for 

the year is focussed on the key audit risks, and that the coverage will enable a robust annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion to be provided. 

Key Emerging Themes 

This year will continue to be another challenging year for Local Government in terms of funding, managing additional recruitment and technological advancement. There are a number of 

operational issues that have also come to prominence; we have identified a number of key areas which require consideration when planning internal audit coverage. 

Providing Assurance during the COVID-19 pandemic 

From the outset, we successfully transitioned to new and remote ways of working without any diminution of the service and we recognise that many if not all of our clients have had to implement 

changes in the way that they work. We continue to consider any gaps in control or exposures that have arisen as a result of this. Whilst many measures have largely been relaxed, it is not 

inconceivable that further measures might be implemented to stem any increases in cases. We continue to adopt a hybrid approach with a mix of remote and on-site working and tailor this 

approach to client requirements and the nature of each assignment.    

Adequacy of the planned audit coverage 

The reviews identified in the audit plan for 2022/23 support the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of South Lakeland District Council’s framework 

of governance, risk management and control as required by TIAA’s charter. The reviews have been identified from your assurance framework, risk registers and key emerging themes. 

Local Government Reorganisation: Cumbria, its six constituent local authorities and partner organisations are transitioning towards the creation of two new unitary authorities. Key timelines 

include laying a Structural Changes Order before Parliament in March 2022, the creation of Joint Committees by March 2022 and shadow elections in May 2022 prior to Vesting Day on 1st 

April 2023. Whilst playing a significant part in this transformation, South Lakeland District Council will need to ensure it maintains delivery of current operations and services during this time. 

Staff Wellbeing and Capacity: The COVID-19 pandemic has undoubtedly brought about changes in working practices, higher absence and changing attitudes towards work. The additional 

workload and pressures brought about by LGR need to be carefully managed during this period and beyond.   

“Multi-channel” resident engagement: Partly as a result of COVID-19 but also as process changes through improved technology, councils will need to embrace cutting edge technology. 

Adopting a multi-channel approach to resident engagement will enable council services to be more readily available, more accessible and more transparent. 

Commercialisation: Councils are being driven towards being more self-sufficient and cost effective, with pressure to close funding gaps and rebalance budgets. Councils will already be 

operating in different financial and more commercial environments. The pandemic is likely to have brought significant unforeseen risks to these investments and their underlying assumptions. 

Cyber Security: As more services move on-line, risks and vulnerabilities are likely to increase. Cyber security is as much about awareness and behaviours as it is about network security. 

Resilience needs to be regularly and stringently stress tested across the organisation to ensure it is operating effectively. 

Climate Change: Around 300 councils have declared a climate emergency. Councils are taking action to reduce their own carbon emissions and working with partners and local communities 

to tackle the impact of climate change on their local area. 

 

P
age 188



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 2 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  

Audit Strategy Methodology 

We adopt a proprietary risk-based approach to determining your audit needs each year which includes reviewing your risk register and risk management framework, the regulatory framework, 

external audit recommendations and previous internal audit work for the organisation, together with key corporate documentation such as your business and corporate plan, standing orders, 

and financial regulations. For 2022/23, we have conducted an analysis of the key risks facing the sector and client base more broadly to inform our annual planning. The Audit Strategy is based 

predominantly on our understanding of the inherent risks facing South Lakeland District Council in what will be a year of transition. Our approach is based on the International Standards for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing which have been developed by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and incorporate the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

Risk Prioritisation 

Each year an updated risk assessment is carried out to ensure the Audit Strategy remains fully aligned with the key risks facing South Lakeland District Council. We take in to account any emerging 

or heightened risks that are facing the sector, to ensure that the work of internal audit remains appropriately focused.  

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 

Following the risk prioritisation review, the Annual Plan at Appendix A sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the planned times and the high-level scopes for each of these reviews.  

The Annual Plan will be subject to ongoing review and could change as the risks change for the organisation and will be formally reviewed with senior management and the Audit Committee mid-

way through the financial year or should a significant issue arise. 

The overall agreed time for the delivery of each assignment within the Annual Plan includes: research; preparation and issue of terms of reference; site work; production and review of working 

papers; and reporting.  

The Annual Plan has been prepared on the assumption that the expected controls will be in place.  

The total number of days required to deliver the Audit Plan is as agreed in the contract between TIAA and South Lakeland District Council. This number of days is fixed and it is TIAA’s responsibility 

to deliver the Audit Plan for this number of days. Where South Lakeland District Council agrees additional work the required number of days and the aggregate day rate will be agreed in advance 

with the Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer and will be clearly set out in the terms of reference for the additional review(s). 

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this plan. 

Date plan issued: 4th April 2022 

Date revised plan issued: 8th April 2022 

P
age 189



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 3 

 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL PLAN – 2022/23 
 

Quarter Review Type Days High-level Scope 

1 Risk Management Assurance 5 This high-level review will consider the arrangements in place for the identification and management of risks, including the 

identification of controls and actions designed to mitigate risk. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

1 Data Integrity Assurance 10 Ahead of transition to the new unitary authority, the review will consider the processes to ensure the integrity, 

completeness and accuracy of data within selected key systems. 

1 Development Control Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that the Council’s planning function meets its service and 

enforcement obligations, including: pre-application advice and planning submissions; processing and responding to 

applications in line with service standards; fees and charges including the Community Infrastructure Levy; dealing with 

consultations, comments and objections; delegated powers, reserved matters and mandatory member training; the appeals 

process; monitoring and enforcement; and, complaints relating to the service (not decisions). 

2 Procurement Assurance 20 The review will consider various discrete aspects of the procurement process, including: 

 Direct awards; 

 Contract extensions; 

 Use of consultants; 

 Existence of signed contracts and agreements; and 

 Planning procurement activity, including compliance with the Section 24 Direction. 

2 Income Management – 

Car Parking 

Assurance 10 Car parking income represents a significant proportion of the Council’s annual income.  

This review will focus on cash receipts for car parking, taking in to account collection, storage, banking and the insurance 

arrangements. It will also consider the controls in place around the increasing use of alternative payment methods, such as 

through mobile phones and other devices.   

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

2 Land Charges and 

Building Control.  

Assurance 20 The review will consider the application and management of land charges, compliance with legislation including the Local 

Land Charges Act 1975 and the Infrastructure Act 2015 and controls and processes for raising, registering and reporting land 

charges. In addition, the review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that the Council’s building control function 

meets its service and enforcement obligations, including: pre-application advice and applications; processing and 

responding to applications in line with service standards; fees and charges; monitoring, including site inspections; and, 

complaints relating to the service. 

P
age 190



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 4 

 

Quarter Review Type Days High-level Scope 

2 Council Tax Rebate 

Payments  

Assurance 15 The Council will be issuing approximately £5.5m to residents whose homes falls into Council Tax Band A – D.  

The review will consider the management and administration of the Council Tax Rebate Payments, including the assessment 

of eligibility and the measures in place to mitigate fraud. 

3 NNDR Assurance 15 SLDC issues approximately 8,000 National Non-domestic Rates bills each year.  

The review will consider the calculation and application of business rates, collection, business rate relief and refunds, 

interest and appeals.   

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

3 Disabled Facilities Grant Assurance 10 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) help to fund adaptations to enable people to stay living in their home. Adaptations can 

include stair lifts, wet floor shower areas and access ramp; DFGs are mandatory for certain essential adaptations. The 

maximum grant available is £30,000.   

The review considers the arrangements for managing Disabled Facilities Grants, including the assessment, approval, 

procurement and payment processes. The review also considers the arrangements for financial and budget monitoring and 

the achievement of value for money. 

3 Cash Receipting Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place for receiving and accounting for monies due to the Council 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

3 ICT – Asset Management Assurance 10 The review will consider the processes in place to manage, maintain and confirm the existence of ICT assets. This will include 

the processes in place for identifying and managing the return of equipment for those leaving their posts. 

4 Main Accounting System Assurance 10 The review will assess procedures and controls within the main accounting systems to ensure that: 

 Control accounts and bank reconciliations are carried out regularly. 

 Transactions are transferred accurately from feeder systems. 

 The integrity and security of the main accounting system is maintained. 

 Responsibilities and processes for journal entries and year end processing are appropriately defined and allocated. 

 Transactions are accurately valued and allocated correctly within the general ledger. 

This audit will focus on the arrangements for the overall governance of the system and the controls and risks related to the 

general ledger. 

This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key financial and governance audits. 

4 Business Continuity Assurance 10 The review will consider the business continuity arrangements that the Council has in place should it be subject to a cyber-

security attack/incident. 

1 – 4 Follow-up Follow up 10 Follow-up of implementation of agreed priorities one and two actions from audit reports, ensuring South Lakeland District 

Council is implementing recommendations, and providing reports to the Audit Committee. 

1 Annual Planning Management 3 Assessing South Lakeland District Council’s annual audit needs. 

P
age 191



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 5 

 

Quarter Review Type Days High-level Scope 

4 Annual Report Management 3 Reporting on the overall conclusions and opinion based on the year’s audits and other information and providing input to 

the Annual Governance Statement. 

1 – 4 Audit Management Management 14 This time includes: meeting client management, overseeing the audit plan, reporting and supporting the Audit Committee, 

liaising with External Audit and Client briefings (including fraud alerts, fraud digests and committee briefings). 

  Total days 195  

P
age 192



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 6 

 

APPENDIX C: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER  

The Need for a Charter 

The Audit Charter formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and 

responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within South 

Lakeland District Council and defines the scope of internal audit activities. 

The establishment of the Audit Charter is a requirement of the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and approval of the charter is the 

responsibility of the Audit Committee.  

The Role of Internal Audit 

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to 

provide, in an economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective 

evaluation of, and opinion on, the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 

the framework of governance, risk management and control. TIAA is 

responsible for providing assurance to South Lakeland District Council’s 

governing body (being the body with overall responsibility for the 

organisation) on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management, 

control and governance processes. 

Standards and Approach 

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance 

with the requirements of the PSIAS and the IIA standards which are 

articulated in the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). 

Scope 

All South Lakeland District Council’s activities fall within the remit of TIAA. 

TIAA may consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure 

propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to 

confirm that South Lakeland District Council’s management has taken the 

necessary steps to achieve these objectives and manage the associated 

risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to question the appropriateness of 

policy decisions; however, TIAA is required to examine the arrangements 

by which such decisions are made, monitored and reviewed. 

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, Audit 

Committee or the nominated officer (being the post responsible for the 

day-to-day liaison with TIAA), provided such reviews do not compromise 

the audit service’s objectivity or independence, or the achievement of the 

approved audit plan. 

Access 

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel 

and premises of South Lakeland District Council and is authorised to 

obtain such information and explanations as they consider necessary to 

form their opinion. The collection of data for this purpose will be carried 

out in a manner prescribed by TIAA’s professional standards, Information 

Security and Information Governance policies. 

Independence 

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the 

development, implementation or operation of systems; however, it may 

provide independent and objective advice on risk management, control, 

governance processes and related matters, subject to resource 

constraints. For day-to-day administrative purposes only, TIAA reports to 

a nominated officer within South Lakeland District Council and the 

reporting arrangements must take account of the nature of audit work 

undertaken. TIAA has a right of direct access to the chair of the board, the 

chair of the Audit Committee and the responsible accounting officer 

(being the post charged with financial responsibility). 

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional 

judgement, responsibility for implementing audit recommendations rests 

with South Lakeland District Council’s management.  

Conflict of Interest 

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for 

potential conflict of interest. In this role we will act in an advisory capacity 

and the nature and scope of the work will be agreed in advance and strictly 

adhered to.  

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will 

manage them in line with TIAA’s audit charter and internal policies, the 

PSIAS/IIA standards and South Lakeland District Council’s requirements. 

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption 

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious 

weaknesses, significant fraud, major accounting and other breakdowns 

subject to the requirements of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. 

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including 

fraud, corruption or any impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can 

consider the adequacy of the relevant controls, evaluate the implication 

of the fraud on the risk management, control and governance processes 

and consider making recommendations as appropriate. The role of TIAA is 

not to investigate the irregularity unless commissioned to do so. 

Limitations and Responsibility 

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the 

internal controls to be providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior 

approval of South Lakeland District Council and additional time will be 

required to carry out such testing. South Lakeland District Council is 

responsible for taking appropriate action to establish whether any loss or 

impropriety has arisen as a result of the control weaknesses. 

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 

against misstatement or loss. The limitations on assurance include the 

possibility of one or more of the following situations, control activities 

being circumvented by the collusion of two or more persons, human error, 

or the overriding of controls by management. Additionally, no assurance 

can be provided that the internal controls will continue to operate 

effectively in future periods or that the controls will be adequate to 

mitigate all significant risks that may arise in future.  

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with 

management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied 

upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither 

should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of 

fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit procedures 

have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable 

probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not 

be proof against collusive fraud. 

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full 

access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure 

the authenticity of these documents. 

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the 

attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews 

and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses 

that exist or all the improvements that might be made. The audit reports 

are prepared solely for management's use and are not prepared for any 

other purpose. 

P
age 193



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Indicative Audit Strategy 2022/25 and Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 7 

 

Liaison with the External Auditor  

We will liaise with South Lakeland District Council’s External Auditor. Any 

matters in the areas included in the Annual Plan that are identified by the 

external auditor in their audit management letters will be included in the 

scope of the appropriate review.  

Reporting 

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review 

carried out. Each report will be prepared in accordance with the 

arrangements contained in the Terms of Reference agreed with TIAA and 

which accord with the requirements of TIAA’s audit charter and PSIAS/IIA 

standards.  

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Audit 

Committee meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date 

against the agreed annual plan. 

Follow-Up Reports: We will provide an independent assessment as to the 

extent that priority 1 and 2 recommendations have been implemented. 

Priority 3 recommendations are low-level/housekeeping in nature and it 

is expected that management will monitor and report on implementation 

as considered appropriate. 

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in 

accordance with the requirements set out in TIAA’s audit charter and 

PSIAS/IIA standards. The Annual Report will include a summary opinion of 

the effectiveness of South Lakeland District Council’s governance, risk 

management and operational control processes based on the work 

completed during the year. 

Other Briefings: During the year Client Briefing Notes, Benchmarking and 

lessons learned digests will be provided. These are designed to keep the 

organisation abreast of in-year developments which may impact on the 

governance, risk and control assurance framework. 

Assurance Assessment Gradings 

We use four levels of assurance assessments as set out below. 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating 

effectively to ensure that risks are managed and 

process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate 

and operating effectively but some improvements are 

required to ensure that risks are managed and 

process objectives achieved.  

Limited 

Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally 

inadequate or not operating effectively and 

significant improvements are required to ensure that 

risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No 

Assurance 

There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core 

internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Data Protection 

TIAA has policies, procedures and processes in place to comply with all 

associated regulation and legislation on information security, which is 

underpinned by mandatory annual awareness training for all staff. To 

carry out our role effectively, we need to obtain information that is 

reliable, relevant and sufficient to support our findings and 

recommendations. The collection of data, particularly sensitive personal 

data, is minimised and is not shared with unauthorised persons unless 

there is a valid and legal requirement to do so. We have clear policies on 

the retention of data and its appropriate, controlled disposal. TIAA has a 

fully robust Information Security Management System that meets all the 

requirements of ISO27001:2013. 

Quality Assurance 

TIAA recognises the importance of Internal Audit being controlled at each 

stage to ensure that we deliver a consistent and efficient Internal Audit 

service that is fully compliant with professional standards and also the 

conditions of contract. We operate a comprehensive internal operational 

quality review process to ensure that all Internal Audit work is carried out 

in accordance with these standards. These quarterly reviews are part of 

our quality management system which has IS0 9001:2015 accreditation.  

Audit Committee Responsibility 

It is the responsibility of South Lakeland District Council to determine that 

the number of audit days to be provided and the planned audit coverage 

are sufficient to meet the Committee’s requirements and the areas 

selected for review are appropriate to provide assurance against the key 

risks within the organisation. 

By approving this document, the Audit Committee is also approving the 

Internal Audit Charter. 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this planning report, along with those raised in our 

audit and annual reports, are only those that came to the attention of the 

auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the 

improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely 

for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or 

in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility 

to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is 

not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any 

duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and 

specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 

whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Performance Standards 

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the 

performance of internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan: 

Performance Measure Target 

Completion of planned audits. 100% 

Audits completed in time allocation. 100% 

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit 

meeting. 

100% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt of 

responses. 

100% 

Compliance with TIAA’s audit charter and PSIAS/IIA 

Standards. 

100% 

 

P
age 194



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 21 April 2022 

Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: n/a 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Good governance arrangements link to the Council’s 
achievements of its Council Plan priorities and objectives.  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 To provide the Audit Committee with assurance following a review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s system of Internal Audit. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1) It is recommended that the Audit Committee consider and endorse the 
conclusion that the Council has an effective system of internal audit in 
place that complies with the principles of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 include a requirement for the Council to 
conduct a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control at least once a 
year. The internal audit function is a key element of internal control.  

3.2 For the purposes of the review, this report sets out various areas of assurance that 
have been relied upon when reviewing whether the system of internal audit is effective. 
These sources of assurance are presented here to allow the Committee to conclude 
the review. 

3.3 The Council’s internal audit service is provided by TIAA Ltd under a contract which 
commenced on 1st April 2016 and has since been extended. 

3.4 In considering its effectiveness, it is worthwhile defining what the Council’s system of 
internal audit is. The definition of Internal Audit is: 

‘an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the 
organisation on the control environment by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving 
the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the 
adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient 
and effective use of resources’  

3.5  The key components of the Council’s system of Internal Audit include:  

Page 195

Item No.14



 An independent and objective Internal Audit function comprising appropriately 
experienced and qualified staff;  

 A three-year rolling programme of reviews of core finance and governance 
reviews; 

 An agreed Annual Internal Audit plan prepared using a risk based approach;  

 The Audit Committee which is independent of the Executive and has, amongst 
other things, responsibility for monitoring the delivery of the Internal Audit plan 
and the implementation of audit recommendations;  

 The scope for both the Assistant Director (Resources) and the internal audit 
manager to report directly to management and Members where there are 
circumstances that require this to happen.  

3.6  The information provided below gives various forms of assurance that the Committee 
should consider when determining whether the system of internal audit is effective. 
This report should equally be considered in conjunction with the previous provider’s 
Annual Internal Audit report which was considered by this Committee at its last 
meeting. 

3.7 During 2020/21 the Finance Lead Specialist agreed a revised timetable for internal 
audit reviews to reflect Covid-19 on the availability of Council staff and resources.  
From April 2021 audit testing returned to normal timetables although is still carried out 
off-site with audits carried out virtually.  Internal audit were available to advise on an 
ad-hoc basis when required. 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

3.8 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) agreed to collaborate in the development of the 
internal audit profession in the public sector. As a result, national Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS), based upon the mandatory elements of the global CIIA’s 
International Professional Performance Framework were developed. 

3.9  The PSIAS came into force on 1st April 2013 and consist of the following: 

 Definition of Internal Auditing; 

 Code of Ethics; and 

 Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

In local government, the PSIAS are mandatory for all principal local authorities and 
other relevant bodies subject to the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. 

3.10 To enable TIAA to continue to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
we are required every five years (standard 1312) to have an external quality assurance 
review of our working processes. TIAA elected to conduct this external validation after 
three years rather than five. The subsequent report from 2016 confirmed full 
compliance with the standards; some minor matters were noted which have been 
updated in our improvement plan and currently being addressed.     

 Audit Charter  

3.11 It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the Council has an Internal Audit Charter which 
has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee. The Charter, 
originally approved by Audit Committee at its meeting of July 2016 and referred to 
annually as part of the Internal Audit annual plan process, sets out the arrangements 
for the delivery of the Internal Audit service to South Lakeland District Council.   

Page 196



 Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2020/21 

3.12 In their Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21, presented to the Audit Committee in July 
2021, the Internal Audit Manager requested that Members note: 

 The progress achieved in 2020/21 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews; 

 The Audit Manager’s opinion of reasonable assurance on the Council’s overall 
systems of governance, risk management and internal control for the year 
ended 31st March 2021; 

 The Audit Manager’s declaration of Internal Audit independence as required by 
the mandatory PSIAS; 

 The Audit Manager’s declaration of conformance with the mandatory PSIAS. 

It is expected that the Audit Manager will be able to give similar assurances in July 
2022 in relation to 2021/22. 

Performance Indicators  

3.13 TIAA has a range of performance indicators, which for 2021/22 include client 
satisfaction monitoring. These are reported on throughout the year and form part of 
the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2021/22. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Assessment of Compliance with Role of Head of Internal Audit 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 This review of effectiveness of Internal Audit is considered by Audit Committee 
annually. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The review of internal audit effectiveness is a key requirement of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015. There are no alternative options. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  The Internal Audit service 
has been delivered within its approved budget. 

Human Resources 

7.2 This report has no direct human resources implications 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No   

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

Page 197



7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 x N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Page 198



Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 x N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Internal Audit coverage does not 
address the high risk areas of 
Council activity.  

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the 
internal control 
environment.  

Risk based annual audit 
planning. 

Non-delivery of the agreed Audit 
Plan.  

The Council would be 
more vulnerable to risk. 

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

Unplanned work which arises in 
year which requires audit 
attention. 

Potential breach of the 
statutory requirement to 
maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal 
control. 

A degree of flexibility in 
the Plan to accommodate 
unplanned work. 

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151), South Lakeland District Council, 01539 
793333, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited: 07970 376542. peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

CIPFA: The role of the head of 

internal audit in public service 

organisations 

https://tinyurl.com/ydyk7x9p 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer N/A N/A 

Monitoring Officer N/A N/A 

CMT N/A N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Page 199

https://tinyurl.com/ydyk7x9p


Circulated to Date sent 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 21/04/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 200



Appendix 1 
 

1 
 

CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 2019 

1 Introduction 

1.1 In 2010, CIPFA published a Statement on the Role of the HIA in Public Sector 

Organisations in recognition of the critical position occupied by the HIA within 

any organisation in helping it to achieve its objectives by giving assurance on its 

internal control arrangements and playing a key role in promoting good 

corporate governance.  CIPFA introduced a ‘comply or explain’ requirement 

which has been formally set out within the CIPFA / SOLACE publication 

‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Governance: Framework Addendum 

(2012)’. 

1.2 The Addendum sets out 21 key elements of the typical systems and processes 

that comprise an authority’s governance arrangements and requires that the 

Council’s review of effectiveness of its governance arrangements makes 

reference to each of these key elements. 

1.3 In relation to the role of the Head of Internal Audit, the Addendum states that a 

key element of governance includes the arrangements for: 

“Ensuring the authority’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance 

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 

(2010) and where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same 

impact.” 

1.4 In order to make a public declaration of conformance with the Statement, it is 

recommended that a self-assessment is undertaken against the detailed 

requirements set out within the publication and signed off by the Chief Financial 

Officer / Corporate Management Team. 

1.5 The CIPFA Statement was reissued in 2019.  There were no fundamental 

changes to the Statement but there have been minor changes to the principles 

and the organisational arrangements needed to support them.    

2 The Five Principles 

2.1 The Statement sets out how the requirements of legislation and professional 

standards should be fulfilled by the Head of Internal Audit in carrying out their 

role and is structured under five core principles: 

2.2 The Head of Internal Audit in a public service organisation plays a critical role in 

delivering the organisation’s strategic objectives by 

 objectively assessing the adequacy of governance and management of risks, 

giving an evidence-based opinion on all aspects of governance       , risk 

management and internal control; and 

 championing best practice in governance and commenting on responses to 

emerging risks and proposed developments. 

Page 201

http://www.cipfa.org/-/media/Files/Publications/Reports/Role_of_the_HIA_NOVEMBERv5.pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/-/media/Files/Publications/Reports/Role_of_the_HIA_NOVEMBERv5.pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/-/media/Files/Publications/Reports/delivering%20good%20governance%20addendum.pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/-/media/Files/Publications/Reports/delivering%20good%20governance%20addendum.pdf


Appendix 1 
 

2 
 

2.3 To perform this role, the Head of Audit: 

 must be a senior manager with regular and open engagement across the 

organisation, particularly with the Leadership Team and with the Audit 

Committee 

 must lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced adequately, 

sufficiently and effectively; and 

 must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

2.4 This completed self-assessment template is attached as Appendix 1 for sign off 

by Audit Committee. 

Page 202



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

3 
 

 

Ref Governance Requirement Council arrangement and any required actions Assessment of 
conformance 

   Y N N/A 

 Principle 1: The HIA in a public service organisation plays a critical role in delivering the organisation’s strategic 
objectives by objectively assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of governance and management of risks, giving 
and evidence-based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal control.  

1.1 Set out the HIA’s role in good governance and 
how this fits with the role of others. 

HIA Role Profile sets out the contribution of the 
annual report of the HIA to the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

  

1.2 Ensure that the importance of good 
governance is stressed to all in the 
organisation, through policies, procedures and 
training 

Constitution contains various codes and rules 
designed to ensure good governance throughout 
the Council.  Officers’ Code of Conduct 
incorporates the Nolan Committee’s Standards in 
Public Life. 

  

1.3 Ensure that the HIA is consulted on all 
proposed major projects, programmes and 
policy initiatives. 

Internal audit plans incorporate capacity to respond 
to requests for ‘hot assurance’ work.  Internal audit 
are frequently asked to provide support to projects 
and other initiatives. 

  

  

P
age 203



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

4 
 

 Principle 2: The HIA in a public service organisation plays a critical role in delivering the organisation’s strategic 
objectives by championing best practice in governance and commenting on responses to emerging risks and 
proposed developments. 

2.1 Set out the responsibilities of the HIA, which 
should not include the management of 
operational areas. 

Responsibilities of the HIA are set out in the Role 
Profile and do not include any operational 
responsibilities.   

 

  

2.2 Ensure that internal audit is independent of 
external audit. 

Internal audit is independent of external audit.  IA 
plans will be shared with external audit, but will not 
be in any way directed by external audit. 

  

2.3 Where the HIA does have operational 
responsibilities the HIA’s line manager and the 
Audit Committee should specifically approve 
the IA strategy for these and associated plans 
and reports and ensure the work is 
independently managed. 

n/a 

  

2.4 Establish clear lines of responsibility for those 
with an interest in governance (eg Chief 
Executive, Chief Legal Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Audit Committee, non-executive 
directors/elected representatives). This covers 
responsibilities for drawing up and reviewing 
key corporate strategies, statements and 
policies 

SLDC constitution includes scheme of delegation 
to officers, terms of reference to committees, 
codes of conduct for officers/members, financial 
procedure rules etc. 

  

2.5 Establish clear lines of reporting to the 
Leadership Team and to the Audit Committee 
where the HIA has significant concerns 

Reporting lines are defined within the Internal Audit 
Charter which has been agreed by the Council’s 
Audit Committee. 

  

P
age 204



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

5 
 

2.6 Agree the terms of reference for internal audit 
with the HIA and the Audit Committee as well 
as with the Leadership Team 

Internal audit charter sets out internal audit’s terms 
of reference.  Charter has been approved by the 
Audit committee 

  

2.7 Set out the basis on which the HIA can give 
assurances to other organisations and the 
basis on which the HIA can place reliance on 
assurances from others. 

The basis of assurances provided to other 
organisations is set out within the contract 
agreement. 

 

  

2.8 Ensure that comprehensive governance 
arrangements are in place, with supporting 
documents covering eg risk management, 
corporate planning, anti-fraud and corruption 
and whistleblowing. 

Key governance documents form part of the 
Council’s constitution, including the counter-fraud 
and corruption and whistleblowing policies.  Risk 
management policy and strategy are in place and 
corporate risk register is reported to Audit 
Committee on a regular basis. 

  

2.9 Ensure that the annual internal audit opinion 
and report are issued in the name of the HIA. 

Annual report of the Head of Internal Audit 
contains the internal audit opinion.  This report is 
presented to Audit Committee by the Head of 
Internal Audit. 

  

P
age 205



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

6 
 

2.10 Include awareness of governance in the 
competencies required by members of the 
Leadership Team. 

The Chief Executive’s JD does explicitly state that 
he has responsibility   

 
“To ensure arrangements are in place for the 
effective corporate governance of the 
Council and the legality, probity, integrity, proper 
accountability and scrutiny of 
decision-making progress, that these are 
maintained within the Council at all times” 

 

The Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources role description includes “Ensuring 
adherence to the vision and values of the Council, 
high standards of performance, effective 
governance and behaviours, both personally and 
within the Organisation.”  

The generic role description for Lead Specialists 
includes “Ensuring the Council’s compliance with 
statutory, regulatory, policy and constitution 
requirements” 

  

2.11 Set out the framework of assurance that 
supports the annual governance report and 
identify internal audit’s role within it. The HIA 
should not be responsible for preparing the 
report 

The framework of assurance that supports the 
annual governance statement is documented 
within the Statement itself and within the approach 
to completing the AGS. 

HIA is not responsible for preparing the AGS, this 
is led by the Finance Lead Specialist on behalf of 
CMT. 

  

P
age 206



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

7 
 

2.12 Ensure that the internal audit strategy is 
approved by the Audit Committee and 
endorsed by the Leadership Team. 

IA is no longer required to produce a strategy.  
This was a requirement of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for IA (2006) which has been replaced by 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
which now require the annual internal audit plan to 
contain a high level statement of how the service is 
to be delivered.  This is included within the Internal 
Audit annual plan. 

  

 Principle 3: The HIA in a public service organisation must be a senior manager with regular and open engagement 
across the organisation, particularly with the Leadership Team and with the Audit Committee. 

3.1 Designate a named individual as HIA in line 
with the principles in this Statement. The 
individual could be someone from another 
organisation where internal audit is contracted 
out or shared. Where this is the case then the 
roles of the HIA and the client manager must 
be clearly set out in the contract or agreement. 

The Audit Manager – Peter Harrison TIAA 

  

3.2 Ensure that where the HIA is an employee that 
they are sufficiently senior and independent 
within the organisation’s structure to allow 
them to carry out their role effectively and be 
able to provide credibly constructive challenge 
to the Management Team. 

Not applicable as the HIA is not an employee of 
the Council. 

 

 
  

3.3 Ensure that where the HIA is an employee the 
HIA is line managed by a member of the 
Management Team. Where the HIA is not an 
employee then the reporting line must be 
clearly set out in the contract or agreement 
with the internal audit supplier. 

The Internal Audit contract and thus the role of the 
HIA is overseen by the S151 Officer, the Finance 
Lead Specialist who is also a member of the 
Corporate Management Team. 

  

P
age 207



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

8 
 

3.4 Establish an Audit Committee in line with 
guidance and good practice. 

The Council has an Audit Committee which 
undertakes an annual self-assessment against the 
CIPFA practical guidance checklist and has 
assessed itself as performing appropriately. 
Review was reported to Audit Committee 
December 2018. 

  

3.5 Set out the HIA’s relationship with the Audit 
Committee and its Chair, including the 
Committee’s role (if any) in appointing the HIA. 

The relationship is set out in the Internal Audit 
Charter.   

3.6 Ensure that the organisation’s governance 
arrangements allow the HIA: 

– to bring influence to bear on material 
decisions reflecting governance; 

– direct access to the Chief Executive, other 
Leadership Team members, the Audit 
Committee and 

external audit; and 

– to attend meetings of the Leadership Team 
and Management Team where the HIA 
considers this to be appropriate. 

The Council has appropriate arrangements in 
place to allow the HIA to perform these functions 
appropriately. 

  

3.7 Set out unfettered rights of access for internal 
audit to all papers and all people in the 
organisation, as well as appropriate access in 
(significant) partner organisations. 

This is defined within the Internal Audit Charter 

  

3.8 Set out the HIA’s responsibilities relating to 
partners including joint ventures and 
outsourced and shared services. 

The HIA responsibilities are defined within the draft 
audit charter in relation to the out sourced service.   

  

P
age 208



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

9 
 

 Principle 4: The HIA in a public service organisation must lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced 
appropriately, sufficiently and effectively 

4.1 Provide the HIA with the resources, expertise 
and systems necessary to perform their role 
effectively. 

Internal audit is considered to be adequately 
resourced to deliver the level of service currently 
required.  This will continue to be closely monitored 
and escalated should resources be insufficient to 
deliver an overall opinion. 

  

4.2 Ensure that the Audit Committee sets out a 
performance framework for the HIA and their 
team and assesses performance and takes 
action as appropriate. 

Performance is currently measured through the 
contract specification. The Internal Audit Shared 
Service also measures its own performance.  

Performance is monitored throughout the year and 
will be reported as part of the outturn report to the 
Audit Committee. 

 

  

4.3 Ensure that there is a regular external review 
of internal audit quality 

The PSIAS introduced a requirement for formal 
external inspection of internal audit: TIAA comply 
with this requirement for external review. 

  

4.4 Ensure that where the HIA is from another 
organisation that they do not also provide the 
external audit service 

Internal audit is provided by TIAA.  The service has 
no external audit role.   

  

P
age 209



Checklist for Assessing Compliance with the Governance Requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head 
of Internal Audit 
 

10 
 

 Principle 5: The HIA in a public service organisation must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced 

5.1 Appoint a professionally qualified HIA whose 
core responsibilities include those set out 
under the other principles in this Statement 
and ensure that these are properly understood 
throughout the organisation. 

The Audit Manager – Peter Harrison TIAA 

  

5.2 Ensure that the HIA has the skills, knowledge, 
experience and resources to perform 
effectively in his or her role. 

The Audit Manager – Peter Harrison TIAA 
  

 

 

P
age 210



21/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 Lead Officer 29 July 2021 23 Sept 2021 8 Dec 2021 21 April 2022 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √  

Review progress against work programme  Helen Smith √ √ √ √  

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith As needed As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report:  Helen Smith/Chair    
√ (referral to 

Council) 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly   √ (2020/21)  

Grant Certification Report (Housing Benefits) Gareth Kelly    √ (2020/21) 

Opinion Audit Plan Gareth Kelly √ (2020/21)   √ (2021/22) 

Audit Fee Letter  Gareth Kelly √ (2020/21)    

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly √ √ √ √  

P
age 211

Item
 N

o.15



21/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer July 2021 Sept 2021 Dec 2021   April 2022 

Internal Audit      

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review 
of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    2022/23 √  

Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison 2020/21√    

2020/21 Internal Audit Plan Progress, 
Individual Internal Audit Reports and 
Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √  

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith   √ √  

Accounts 

Approve the 2020/21 draft Statement of 
Accounts 

Helen Smith √    

Approve the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, 
Annual Governance Statement and Action 
Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith  
√ (update 
report to 
follow) 

  

2020/21 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Gareth Kelly  
√ (report to 

follow) 
  

Review Accounting Policies for 2021/22 
Statement of Accounts 

Claire Read   √   

P
age 212



21/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer July 2021 Sept 2021 Dec 2021   April 2022 

Regulatory Framework      

Decision to Opt-in to the National Scheme for 
Audit Appointments 

Helen Smith   √  

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the Statement of Accounts Report 

Helen Smith 
Arrange sub-

group  
   

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith 
Delay to Sept 

2021 
√ √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy (Bi-annual) Helen Smith  √ √ 
√ (delayed to 

July 2022) 

Review of Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 

Simon McVey    √  

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  √  

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith 
Delay to Sept 

2021 
√ √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   
Helen Smith/Linda 

Fisher 
  √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √ √  

P
age 213



21/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 

Financial Issues 

Customer Connect Business Case & Updates Simon McVey  Final Report Final Report Final Report  

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 214



22/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 22 Sept 2022 8 Dec 2022 2 March 2023 

Committee Administration 

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith     

Review progress against work programme  Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary outside meetings  Helen Smith As needed As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report:  Helen Smith/Chair    
√ (referral to 

Council) 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit      

Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly   √ (2021/22)  

Grant Certification Report (Housing Benefits) Gareth Kelly    √ (2021/22) 

Opinion Audit Plan Gareth Kelly √ (2021/22)   √ (2022/23) 

Audit Fee Letter  Gareth Kelly √ (2021/22)    

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly √ √ √ √ 

Internal Audit      

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review of Internal 
Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison     

P
age 215



22/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 22 Sept 2022 8 Dec 2022 2 March 2023 

Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison 2021/22√   2022/23 √ 

2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress, Individual Internal 
Audit Reports and Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith    √ 

Accounts      

Approve the 2021/22 draft Statement of Accounts Helen Smith √    

Approve the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts, Annual 
Governance Statement and Action Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith  √    

2021/22 Statement of Accounts - Receive external auditor’s 
opinion on Accounts (Audit Findings Report & Financial 
Resilience Report) 

Gareth Kelly  √    

Review Accounting Policies for 2022/23 Statement of 
Accounts 

Claire Read    √ 

Regulatory Framework      

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith  √   

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith √    

Review Whistleblowing Policy (Bi-annual) Helen Smith √    

Review of Performance and Risk Management Framework Simon McVey Reviewed April 22 

P
age 216



22/04/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 22 Sept 2022 8 Dec 2022 2 March 2023 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of risk tolerance  Simon McVey Reviewed April 22 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance and AGS Action Plan 
Helen Smith/Linda 

Fisher 
  

√ (if 
required) 

 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues      

Update of significant financial issues not covered elsewhere 
on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 217



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 218


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Risk Management - Operational Risks
	Risk Management - Operational Risks  - Appendix 1

	6 Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process  - Appendix 1
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process  - Appendix 2

	7 The External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council Year Ended 31 March 2022
	8 Audit Committee Progress Report
	9 Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process Report
	10 Chair of Audit Committee's Annual Report
	Chair of the Audit Committees Annual Report 2021-22 - Appendix 1

	11 Review of Effectiveness of Audit Committee
	Review of effectiveness of audit committee Apr 22 App 1
	Review of effectiveness of audit committee Apr 22 App 2
	Review of effectiveness of audit committee Apr 22 App 3 Skills

	12 SLDC Internal Audit Progress Report
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Progress Report April 2022-f APPENDIX 1
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Progress Report April 2022 Finalised Reports APPENDICES 2a-2e
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Progress Report April 2022 Follow Up Appendix 3

	13 SLDC Internal Audit Annual Plan
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Annual-Plan-2022-23-d(r)

	14 Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit
	Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit Appendix 1

	15 Audit Committee Work Programmes
	Audit Committee work programme 2022.23 April 2022


